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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Commissioners
Bulloch County, Georgia

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental actIVItIes, the business-type activItieS, the
aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Bulloch
County, Georgia, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2006, which collectively comprise the County's basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of Bulloch County, Georgia's
management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the
financial statements of the Bulloch County Board of Health and the Development Authority of Bulloch County. Those financial
statements were audited by other auditors whose report thereon has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to
the amounts included for the Bulloch County Board of Health and the Development Authority of Bulloch County, is based on
the reports of the otherauditors.'

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the aC90unting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that
our audit and the reports ofother auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, the financial statements referred to above' present fairly, in
all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate
discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Bulloch County,
Georgia, as of June 30, 2006, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where lIpplicable, thereof, and the
respective budgetary comparison for the General Fund, for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards. we have also issued our report dated December 22, 2006 on our
consideration of Bulloch County, Georgia's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing and
not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Audit Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

The management's discussion and analysis on pages 5 through 19 is not a required part of the baSic financial statements but is
supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United states of America. We have
applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of
measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did nWhiaudit the information and
express no opinion on it.
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Our audit was conducted for the purpose of fanning opinious on the financial statements that collectively comprise Bulloch
County, Georgia's basic financial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules
and schedule of projects paid with SPLOST proceeds are presentcd for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required
part of the basic fmancial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules and
schedule of projects paid with SPLOST proceeds have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in tlle audit of the
basic financial statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial
statements taken as a whole.

December 22, 2006

I.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Within this section of the Bulloch County, Georgia's (the "County") annual financial report, the County's
management is pleased to provide this narrative discussion and analysis of the financial activities of the
County for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006. The County's financial perfonnance is discussed and
analyzed within the context of the accompanying financial statements and disclos\1res following this
section.

Financial Highlights

The County had total net assets (assets exceeded liabilities) of $67,301,067 at 2006 fiscal year-end.
That is $1,820,044 (or 2.8%) higher than the total net assets of $65,481,023 at 2005 fiscal year-end.
Fiscal year 2005 had seen a $1,912,779 (or 3.0%) increase in total net assets from the $63,568,244 in
fiscal year 2004. This is a velJ' positive freud, documenting that the COI/Ilty is investing ill tlte needed
infrastructure, buildings, alld equipment for a growing COllllty, while simultaneously preserving
adequate liquidity to lIIeet normal cash flow requirements amlally emergencies.

Total net assets are comprised ofUle following:

I.

(I)

(2)

(3)

Capital assets, net of related debt, of $45,885,068 include property and equipment, net of
accumulated depreciation, and reduced for outstanding debt related to the purchase or construction
of capital assets. The figure for fiscal year 2005 was $43,784,975. That is an increase of
$2,100,093 (or 4.8%) for fiscal year 2006. The figure for fiscal year 2004 wa~ $41,711,113. That
was an increase of $2,073,862 (or 5.0%) for fiscal year 2005. This is a very positive tre/lll as it
indicates that the County is making adequate investments in capital assets, while meeting its
operating expenses.

Net assets of $15,059,779 are restricted by constraints imposed from outside the County such as
debt covenants, grantors, laws, or regulations. That is $600,662 (or 4.1 %) more Ulan the fiscal year
2005 amount of$14,459,117.

Unrestricted net assets of $6,356,220 represent the portion available to maintain the County's
continuing obligations to citizens and creditors. This is a $880,711 (or 12.2%) decrease from the
fiscal year 2005 total of $7,236,931. Unrestricted net assets also decreased in fiscal year 2005.
This trend is negative because the decline of unrestricted net assets gives the County less
fillallcial fiexibility.

The County's governmental funds reported total ending fund balance of $29,497,411 in fiscal year
2006, compared to $21,230,166 in fiscal year 2005. This is an increase of $8,267,245 (or 38.9%). This
was primarily due to a higher rate of accumulation in fund balance for the 2002 Special Local Option
Sales Tax (SPLOST) Fund, and ule establishment of a construction escrow account for the County Jail
Expansion project which will be paid from future SPLOST 2007 proceeds. The fiscal year 2005 ending
fund balance showed a decrease of$I,185,642 (or 5.3%). The unreserved fund balance of$29,254,155
for fiscal year 2006 is an $8,255,467 (or 39.3%) increase from fiscal year 2005. Unreserved fund
balance of $20,998,688 for fiscal year 2005 was a $4,406,513 (or 26.5%) increase from the
$16,592,175 in fiscal year 2004.

At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance for the General Fund was $5,253,620 (or
22.4%) of total General Fund expenditures and net of other financing sources and tlses. That compares
to $6,539,571 (or 28.6%) of total General Fund expenditures, net ofother financing sources and uses in
fiscal year 2005. Fiscal year 2004's unreserved fund balance for the General Fund ;vas $8,753,861 (or
38.2%) of total General Fund expenditures and net of other financing sources and us.tW
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Overall, despite all illcrease ill capital assets, the COllnt)' is showing II declining amI more negative
operatillg fillallcial positioll. Overall, in Fiscal Year 2006, Bulloch County continued to make
significant investment in capital assets and service delivery, while at the same time being under
pressure to maintain optimal levels of [mancial strength and liquidity. However, revenue growth has
been restricted to a level consistent with the overall Consumer Price Index, while varying segments of
operating and capital expenditures have been subject to escalating rates o[ inflation tied to
commodities such as energy and building materials. This is the result of a strU<itural budget deficit for
Bulloch County over the last five years. The above financial highlights are explained in more detail in
the "financial analysis" section of this document.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to Bulloch County's basic financial
statements. The County's basic financial statements consist of three components; I) government-wide
financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. The basic
financial statements present two different views of the County through the use of government-wide
statements and fund financial statements. In addition to the basic financial statements, this report contains
other supplemental information that will enhance the reader's understanding of the financial condition of
Bulloch County.

Basic Financial Statements

The first statements of the basic financial statements are the Government-wide Financial Statements of
the County. They include a Statement of Net Assets and a Statement of Activities concerning the County
and its discretely presented component units. The government-wide financial statements are presented on
pages 20 and 21.

The next statements are Fund Financial Statements. These statements focus on the actiVIties of the
individual parts of the County's government. These statements provide more detail than the government
wide statements. There are four parts to ti,e Fund Financial Statements: 1) the governmental funds
statements; 2) the budgetary comparison statements; 3) the proprietary fund statements; !nd 4) ti,e fiduciary
fund statements. The fund [mancial statements are presented on pages 22-31.

The next section of the basic [mancial statements is the notes. The notes to the financial statements explain
in detail some of the data contained in those statements. After the notes, supplemental information is
provided to show details about the County's non-major governmeotal funds, all of which are added
together in OTIe column on the basic [mancial statements. Budgetary information require? by the Official
Code ofGeorgia Annotated also can be found in this part of the statements.

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide the reader with a broad overview of the
County and its discretely presented component units' finances, similar in format to a financial statement of
a private-sector business. The government-wide statements provide short and long-term information about
the County and its discretely presented component units' financial stahlS as a whole. The government-wide
statements report ti,e County and its discretely presented component units' net assets and how they have
changed. Net assets are the difference between total assets and total liabilities. Measuring net assets is one
way to gauge the County and its discretely presented component units' financial condition.

The government-wide statements are divided into two categories: 1) governmental activities; and 2)
business-type activities. The governmental activities include most of the County's basic services such as
general government, public safety, public works, community and economic development" and community
services. Property taxes and sales taxes finance most of these activities. Also, includctI1fu governmental
activities are multiple special revenue funds where transfers are used to help fund deficits where user
charges are insufficient to fund the full direct costs. These activities include (among others) the airport, E
911, recreation, and solid waste disposal and convenience center operations of Bulloch County. A summary
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of the County's discretely presented component units is also included. The county provides partial funding
to these units as a part of governmental activities.

The business-type activities are those that assess a charge or user fee to the customers they provide services
to. These activities include the Aquatic Center and the Agribusiness Center. The County also has an
internal service fund, which is a proprietary fund that accounts for employee paid prepliums collected as
revenues, and claims paid to a third party administrator for employee health insuranc,e related expenses.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide a more detailed look at the County's most significant activities. A
fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been
segregated for specific activities or objectives. Bulloch County, like all other governmental entities in
Georgia, uses fund accounting to ensure and reflect compliance (or non-compliance) with finance-related
legal requirements or standards, such as the Official Code of Georgia Annotated, Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles and the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. All of the funds of Bulloch
County can be divided into two categories: governmental funds and proprietary funds.

Governmental Funds: Governmental funds are used to account for those functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. Most of the County's basic services
are accounted for in governmental funds. These funds focus on how assets can readily be converted into
cash flow in and out, and what monies are left at year-end that will be available for spending iIi the next
year. Governmental funds are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting
which provides a current financial resources focus. As a result, the governmental fund "financial statements
give the reader a detailed short-tenn view that helps him or her detennine if there are more or less [mancial
resources available to finance the County's programs.

I.

The relationship between government activities (reported in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement
of Activities) and governmental funds is described in a reconciliation that is a part of the fund financial
statements.

Bulloch County adopts an annual budget for its General Fund, as required by the Official Code of Georgia
Annotated 36-81-3. The budget is a legally adopted document that incorporates input from the citizens of
the County, the management of the County, and the decisions of the Board about which services to provide
and how to pay for them. It also authorizes the County to obtain funds from identified sources to finance
these current period activities. The budgetary statement provided for the General Fund demonstrates how
well the County complied with the budget ordinance and whether or not the County succeeded in providing
the services as plaIU1ed when the budget was adopted. The budgetary comparison st~tement uses the
budgetary basis of accounting and is presented using the same fonnat, language, and classifications as the
legal budget document. The statement shows four columns: 1) the original budget as adopted by the board;
2) the final budget as amended by the board; 3) the actual resources, charges to appropriations, and ending
balances in the General Fund; and 4) the difference or variance between the final budget and the actual
resources and charges.

The basic governmental fund financial statements are presented on pages 22-27 of this report.

~"t

The basic proprietary fund financial statements are presented on pages 28-30 of this report.

Proprietary Funds: Proprietary funds are reported in the fund financial statements and generally report
services for which the County assesses fees or user charges. Two of the County's proprietary funds are
classified as enterprise funds: the Aquatic Center Fund and the Agribusiness Center Fund. These enterprise
funds essentially encompass the same functions reported as business-type activities in the government-wide
statements. A third proprietary fund: the Employee Insurance Fund is an internal service fund to account
for transactions for the self-funded county group health insurance plan.
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Agency Fnnds: Agency funds are nsed to acconnt for assets the Connty holds on behalf of the Sheriff,
Emergency Medical Services, Probation, the Clerk of Courts, Probate Court, the Magistrate Court, the
Greater Statesboro Fire District and the Tax ComnUssioner.

The basic agency fund financial statement is presented on page 31 of this report.

Notes ta lite Basic Financial Statements

The accnmpanying notes to the financial statements provide infonnation essential to a full understanding of
the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements begin on page 32
of this report.

Supplementary Illformatioll

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying note disclosures, this report also presents
certain required supplementary infonnation concerrting the Conoty's budget presentations. The budgetary
comparison statement is included as a basic financial statement for the general fund. Budgetary comparison
schedules for all other governmental funds can be found in a later section of this report. These statements
and schedules demonstrate compliance with the County's adopted and final revised budget.

During the fiscal year, the Board of Commissioners adopted by resolution several budget amendments, or
revisions, to the original budget resolutions. As discussed, the County reports major funds in 'the basic
financial statements. Combining and individual statements and schedules for non-major funds are presented
in this section of this report beginning on page 53. ..

Financial Analysis of the County 3S 11 Whole

Fillallcial Strellgth .

As a part of examining the County's past financial trends, Bulloch County financial stafjf annually measure
key financial ratios used by both the credit industry and the Government Finance Offibers Association to
detennine liquidity and debt capacity. These ratios reflect the period ending June 30, 2006 for
governmental activities. Below is a description of the indicators used.

Current Ratio: This is a measure of the County's ability to meet short-tenn debt obligations; the higher
the ratio, the more liquid the entity is. Current ratio is equal to current assets divided by current liabilities.
If the current assets of a county are more than twice the current liabilities, then that cO}lnty is generally
considered to have good short-tenn fmancial strength. If current liabilities exceed current assets, then the
county may have problems meeting its short-tenn obligations.
Total Debt to Equity Ratio: This is a measure of the County's financial leverage calculated by dividing
long-tenn debt by total net assets. It indicates what proportion of equity and debt the entity is using to
finance its assets.
Working Capital (also ealled Net Current Assets): This is a measure of current assets rrtinus cUrtent
liabilities. Working capital measures how much in liquid assets the County has available for operations and
growth. The number can be positive or negative, depending on how much debt is camed. In general,
counties that have a lot of working capital will be more successful since they can expand and improve their
operations and infrastructure. Counties with negative working capital may lack the funds necessary for
growth.
Current Liabilities Ratio: Current liabilities are those obligations that are cUrtently due at tile end of a
fiscal year plus the portion of long-tenn debt that will become due during the next fiscal year. Current
liabilities include accounts payable, short-tenn debt, accrued liabilities, and current matUrities of long-tenn
debt. .
Operating Position: This is a measure of the unrestricted balance or portion of net assM< available, either
in the General Fund, or in an enterprise fund as a percentage of annual operating revenue. This measure
shows the ability to withstand financial emergencies or to accumulate funds for capital purchases without
having to borrow.
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Ratio of General Debt Outstanding: This measure is the amount of general obligation debt in Ole fornl of
bonds backed by the full faith and credit of the government.
Debt Limit Ratio: Direct debt is bonded debt for which the local government has pledged its full faith and
credit. This long-tenn debt indicator uses assessed valuation in the denominator and assumes that property
taxes are the primary source of debt repayment. This indicator does not include capital lease obligations
since they are not "legal" debt.
Legal Debt Margin: This is the actual amount Olat which the local government can pleage its full faith and
credit.
Net Overlapping Debt: The overlapping debt indicator measures the ability of the community's tax base
to repay Ole long-term general obligation debt obligations issued by all of its governmental and quasi
governmental jurisdictions. If other jurisdictions default, the community may have contingent, moral, or
political obligations to assume the debt, provide the services, or both.
Net Direet Long-Term Debt Per Capita: This measure indicates the net direct obligation of total general
obligation debt divided by the population of the community.

2006 2005 2006
Fimmcial Strength Rnlios Governmental Governmental Standard Adherence to

Activities Activities Standard

Current Ratio 8.8 10.1 2.0 or> Positive

Total Debt (0 Equity Ratio 0.255 .328 1.0 or < Positive

Working Capitlll S58.838,338 S57,038,877 NA Positive

CurTent LlnblJltics Ratio 0.101 0.067 0.05 or < Negative

Operating Position 0234 0.296 0.25 or > Negative
"

Ralio of General Debt Outstanding 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% Positive

Debt limit Ratio 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% NA
Legal Debt Margin 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% Positive

Net Overlapping Debt S15.450,000 (2) St5.450,OOO (2) NA NA
Net Direct Long-Term Debt Pcr Cnpitll SO,OO SO.OO NA NA

(t) NA - Not applicable. I.
(2) Bulloch County Board ofEducntion- 100%.

Upon examining Bulloch County financial ratios against developed standards, it's noted that with exception
to current liabilities and operating position, the other ratios indicate favorable or positive fmancial strength.
It should be 1I0ted that the negative declining trelld ill Blll/och County's currellt liabilities indicates a
greater reliance 011 short term debt to flllld current operations, and the lIegative declining trelld ill
operating position has beell ill place for at least the last six fiscal years alld illdicates a structural budget
deficit. It should he 1I0ted fllrther tltat witlt the exceptio" of workillg capital, all ratios are showillg
declines

SI/mmary ofNet Assets

As noted earlier. Bulloch County uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance
related legal requirements. The County implemented the new financial reporting model used in this report
beginning with fiscal year 2004. As year-lo-year financial information is accumulated on a consistent basis,
changes in net assets will be observed and used to discuss the changing financial position of the County as
a whole. The County had lotal net assets (assels exceeded liabilities) of$67,301,067 at 2006 fiscal year-end
compared to the fiscal year 2005 figure of $65,48 I,023. The following table provide~ a sununary of the
County's net assets:
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Summary or Nct Assets

Governmental Activities Business-T\"p(' Activities Total
I'crcentnge or

Tot31

2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005

Assets

Current ..<\sscts 33,080,400 23,347,926 619,491 351,306 33,699,891 L 23,699,132 39.4% 32.7%

Capital Assets 43,960,829 40,657,931 7,876,327 8,090,830 51,837,156 48,748,761 60.6% 67.3%

Total Assets 77,041,229 64,005,857 8,495,818 8,442,136 85,537,047 72,447,993 100.0% 100.0%

Liabilities

Current Liabilities 3,759,596 2,307,648 33,809 3,793,405 2,307,648 20.8% 33.1%

Long-Tenn liabilities 14,443,295 4,659,322 14,443,295 4,659,322 79.1% 66.9%

Total Li:lbilities 18,202,891 6,966,970 33,809 18,235,980 6,966,970 100.0% 100.0%

Net Assets

Invested in Capital Assets, Net or Debt 38,008,741 35,694,145 7,876,327 8,090,830 45,885,068 43,784,975 68.2% 66.9%

Restricted - Capital Projcr:ts 13,560,181 13,261,411 13,560,181 13,261,411 20.2% 20.2%

Restrictl..'il- Other Purposes 1,499,598 1,197,706 1,499,598 1,197,706 2.2% 1.8%

Unrestricted 5,769,818 6,885,625 586,402 351,306 6,356,220 7,236,931 9.4% 11.1 %

Tot31 Net Assets 58,838,338 57,038,887 8,462,729 8,442,136 67,301,067 65,481,023 100.0% 100.0%

The County reported positive balances in net assets for both governmental and business-type activities. Net
assets for fiscal year 2006 increased by $1,799,451 for governmental activities, and by $20,593 for
business-type activities. Net assets for fiscal year 2005 decreased by $6,391,019 for governmental activities
and increased by $8,303,798 for business type activities.

Note that in fiscal year 2006 and in fiscal year 2005, respectively 64.5% and 62.6% of the governmental
activities' net assets were tied up in capital assets. This documents that the County continues to invest
adequately in the capital assets needed to provide services, while meeting its ongoing operating expenses.
On the business type activities, the County has spent 93.1 % in fiscal year 2006, and 95.8% in fiscal year
2005 of its net assets on capital. This is not unusual, as the County's business type activhies are unique and
very capital intensive operations. Expansion of these systems is necessary for the continued growth of these
enterprises and their added value to the local economy. 68.2% in fiscal year 2006, and 66.9% in fiscal year
2005 of the County's total net assets were included in capital assets.
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Summary of Changcs in Net Asscts

2006 200S

Govcrllmcnhll Business
Total

Pcrccntllgc Govcrnmcntal Business
Totd

Pcrcentage
Activities Activitics ofTo(al Activities Activitics ofTotal

Program Rcvcnues

Fees, Fines, Charges for Services 9,389,379 1,267,948 10,657,327 27.7% 9,211,104 ~,066,826 10,277,930 28.6%

Operating Grants and Contributions 2,403,237 2,403,237 6.2% 2,373,639 2,373,639 6.6%

Capital Grnnts and Contributions 833,540 833,540 2.2% 564,951 561,951 1.6%

Gencrnl Revenucs

23,189,284 ~(,'f'Taxes 23,189,284 60.1% 21,365,324 21,365,324 59.4%

O,h" ~1rJ }. 1,455,527 14,915 1,470,442 3.8% 1,376,464 1,376,464 3.8%

Totnl Revenucs"1 ~..( 37,2711,967 1,282,863 38,553,830 100.0% 34,89l,482 1,066,826 35,958,298 100.0%
.f

Program Expenses

Gcneml Government 3,044,111 3,044,111 8.6% 3,384,257 3,384,257 10.2%

Judicial 2,317,738 2,317,738 6.5% 2,318,489 2,318,489 7.0%

Public Safety 13,328,746 13,328,746 37.7% 11,394,271 11,394,271 34.4%

Roads 3,440,966 3,440,966 9.7% 2,849,631 2,849,631 8.6%

Sanitation 1,887,713 1,887,713 5.3% 2,542,215 2,542,215 7.7%

Health and Welfare 352,219 352,219 1.0% 377,619 377,619 1.2%

Libraries and Recreation 3,885,998 3,885,998 11.0% 3,687,062 3,687,062 11.1%

Airport 597,260 597,260 1.7% 443,150 443,150 1.3%

Housing and Development 1,093,366 1,093,366 3.1% 2,579,154 2,579,154 7.8%

Intergovernmental 3,980,348 3,980,348 11.1% 2,135,685 2,135,685 6.4%

Interest 194,496 194,496 0.6% 270,334 270,334 0.8%

Aquutic Center 1,120,527 1,120,527 3.2% 1,008,116 1,008,116 3.0%

Agribusiness Center 148,500 148,500 0.4% 144,986 144,986 0.4%

Other 27,684 I. - 27,684 0.1%

Total Expenses 34,122,961 1,269,027 35,391,988 100.0% 32,0119,551 1,153,102 33,t62,653 100.0%

Excess (Ddicicney) 3,148,006 13,836 3,161,842 2,881,931 (86,276) 2,795,655

Transfers (29,343) 29,343 (218,899) 218,899

Change in Net Assets 3,118,663 43,179 3,161,842 2,663,032 132,623 2,795,655

Prior Period Adjustment (1,319,212) (:!2,586) (1,341,798) (9,054,051) 8,171,175 (882,876)

Beginning Net Assets 57,038,887 8,442,136 65,481,023 63,429,906 138,338 63,568,244

Ending Net Assets 58,838,338 8,462,729 67,301,067 57,1138,887 8,442,136 65,481,023

Goverlllllelltal Activities: Revellues

Bulloch County is one of only eight counties out of 159 in Georgia that do not receive any of the 1% Local
Option Sales Tax (LOST). A local Constitutional Amendment was passed by the Georgia General
Assembly in the 1981 Session (Georgia Laws, 1981, p, 1931) which called for a referendum on the
qnestion of whether or not the local option sales tax should go to the Bulloch County Board of Education,
with a dollar for dollar reduction in the school property tax. The referendum passed on November 2, 1982,
Since that time, this money has gone to the Board of Education. Since most Georgia counties and cities
negotiate a fonnula to distribute LOST proceeds among themselves, the absence of t'<is availability puts
Bulloch County's basic units of local government at a distinct disadvantage relative to almost all the other
cities and counties in the state. Ultimately, it means that we have to rely more heavily on the local property
tax and user fees than these other cities and counties. For example) if the county and municipal
govemrnents had split this approxinlately $9,000,000 in local option sales taxes in fiscal &\\lilr 2006, Bulloch
County could have potentially realized $4,500,000 in additional revenue.
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However, Bulloch County and its municipalities do share the proceeds of a I% Special Purpose Local
Option Sales Tax (SPLOST), which has passed referendums in both 1997 and 2002 for five-year terms. At
first glance it appears that the County is heavily reliant on sales taxes to support governmental operations.
In fiscal year 2005, sales taxes of $8,587,081 out of $34,588,30 I in total governmental funds revenues, or
24.8%, were received from the 2002 SPLOST. However, all of that money was spent on capital outlay, not
operating costs, as the SPLOST funds are earmarked by state law specifically for tapital outlay only.
Similarly, in fiscal year 2006, $9,714,763 in sales taxes represented 26.1% of ihe $37,270,122 in
governmental funds revenues.

Because of its healthy financial position, comparative to many other counties, Bulloch County has been
able to eam $865,833 in fiscal year 2006, and $438,472 in fiscal year 2005, in interest to support
governmental activities. Also, note that program revenues covered 37.0% in fiscal year 2006, and 38.0% in
fiscal year 2005 of governmental operating expenses. This means that the government's taxpayers and the
County's other general revenues funded the remaining 63.0% in fiscal year 2006, and 62.0% in fiscal year
2005 of the governmental activities.

Property taxes are an important source of revenue to Bulloch County's General Fund. In fiscal year 2006,
property tax revenues were $11,197,343 (or 50.5% of total revenues), in fiscal year 2005, $10,758,097 (or
49.6% of total revenues), and in fiscal year 2004, $10,848,014 (or 47.4% of total revenues). This further
illustrates the County's high dependence on property tax sources noted above.

Governmental Activities: Functional Expenses

Public safety is the county's largest functional cost, comprising 39.1 % of the County's total governmental
activity expenses and 37.7% of total County expenses. In fiscal year 2005, those figures were 35.6% and
34.4% respectively. In fiscal year 2006, general government totals 8.9% of the total governmental activity
expense, and 8.6% of the total County expenses. In fiscal year 2005, general government totaled 10.6% of
tl,e total govenunental activity expenses, and 10.2% of the total County expenses indicating the County's
commitment to minimize the cost of administrative support services in favor of providing direct services to
its citizens. b
The following table presents the cost of each of the County's programs, including the et costs (I.e., total
cost less revenues generated by the activities). The net costs illustrate the financial burden that was placed
on the County's taxpayers by each of these functions.

Governmental Activities

2006 2005

Total Cost of Net Cost of Total Cost of Net Cost of
Services Services Services Services

General Government 3.044.111 (991.633) 3.384.257 (t,4 to.525)

Judicial 2.317.738 (1.658.867) 2,318,489 (1.770.393)

Public Safety 13,328,746 (8.t56.887) 11,394,271 (5,675,895)

Roads 3.440.966 (2,689.325) 2.849,63 t (2.347.699)

Sanitation 1,887,713 (1.238.340) 2.542,215 (1.929.897)

Health and Welfhre 352,219 (352,219) 377,6t9 (366.088)

Libmrics and Rct:reation 3.885.998 (2.359.677) 3,687,062 (2,534,668)

Airpon 597,260 21.575 443,150 18,192

I-lousing and Development 1.093.366 (572,265) 2,579,154 (2,057,946)

Intergovernmental 3.980.348 (3.304.671) 2,135,685 (1,486.920)

Interest 194,496 (194.496) 270,3i4 (270.334)

Other 27 6~4 ' (27.684), II

Total 34,122,961 (2 t ,496,805) 32,009,551 (19,859,857)
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For fiscal year 2006, all functions except the Airport, required a subsidy from general revenues comprising
63.0% of all expenses. For fiscal year 2005, all functions except the Airport, required a subsidy from
general revenues comprising 62.0% ofall expenses.

Business-Type Activities: Revenues vs. Expenses

~
For fiscal year 2006, the aggregate operating revenues for tlle county enterprise funds were 18.9% above
2005 and operating expenses were 10.1 % above fiscal year 2005. Within tlle total business type activities
of the County, these activities reported aggregate operating losses of $1 ,079, compared to operating losses
of $86,276 in fiscal year 2005. However, after transfers in and out between other funds, these funds
reported a combined profit of$43,179 in fiscal year 2006 compared to $132,623 in fiscal year 2005.

Business-Type Activities: Opertlting Income (Loss)

Amount

2006

Percent Change Amount

2005

Percent Change

Aquatic Center Fund

Agribusiness Center Fund

569,232

(570,311 )

263.8% ($42,254)

(59.7%) (544,022)

(58.7%)'"

(120.7%)*

This percentage factored depreciation which was 1I0t charged as an operating expense in FY 200·t.

Operating income before transfers for the Aquatic Center Fund CSplash in the 'Boro) increased significantly
in fiscal year 2006 with operating revenues increasing 23.2%, while operating expenses increased only
11.2%, resulting in a 263.8% increase in annual operating income. The Aquatic Center realized a
significant increase in attendance at the beginning of the 2006 summer season which significantly bolstered
increased revenue. Meanwhile, the additional operational experience allowed the operating staff to better
achieve efficiencies and scale economies on the expenditure side.

The operating income for the Agribusiness Center Fund decreased significantly in qscal year 2006 as
operating revenues declined 22.6%, while operating expenses before depreciation increased by 3.6%,
resulting in a 59.7% increase in its annual operating loss. The current operations consist of rental income to
help support the 30,000 square foot office complex which houses several agribusiness related governmental
entities. The rental is largely subsidized to the extent that direct operating expenses are covered, and
depreciation is not factored into rental prices. Because of budgetary constraints, in fiscal year 2006, the
County did not subsidize Cas it did previously) rental payments to the Agribusiness Fund from the
functional operating budget of the County Extension Service which occupied a portion ofthe facility in the
amount of $28,000 per annum, thus resulting in the aggregate difference in the Agribusiness' Center
operating income from fiscal year 2005. However, as the future development of the Phase II mixed-use
arena proceeds, it is expected that within three years a new stream of revenue will be established which will
aid in improving fund solvency.

The County also began transferring resources from the business-type activities beginning in fiscal year
2006. $65,181 was transferred out of the Aquatic Center Fund and $4,985 was transferred out of the
Agribusiness Center Fund to the general fund. The County transfers resources between its business-type
funds and its governmental funds for the following reasons:

• The COUIlty has developed a formula based allocation for charges to its enterprise funds tllat take
the fonn of transfers out of these funds to help cover the costs of overhead services from the
General Fund. These costs include the various staff departments, such as personnel, fmance,
purchasing, and records, as well as part of the County Manager's time. If these enterprise funds
were privately owned, the County would be entitled to property taxes on tlle Ql;Rperty in service,
net of accumulated depreciation, similar to other private service providers. These transfers are
made in lieu ofproperty taxes.
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• Periodically, capital improvements or investments must be made to enhance the use by the
customers and occupants of these facilities. Where appropriated, the Board of Commissioners
makes available budgeted resources for transfers into these enterprise funds from the Special
Purpose Local Option Sales Tax for these enhancements. This relieves subsidies from property tax
payers who commit resources through the General Fund. Because at least one-third of all sales
taxes are generated from consumers living outside of Bulloch County, thes~ consumers in fact
provide additional tax relief for county taxpayers who may otherwise have .to commit local dollars
toward the improvement of these facilities.

• Since the County's taxpayers are in fact the investors who started and financed these operations,
they are being rewarded with a comparable return on equity in the form of lower property taxes.
This return can be made while still maintaining fee or user charges that are at or below the market
prices offered by comparable private companies.

• Hosting a sizable regional university and numerous other governmental and non-profit entities
results in a considerable amount of property not being subject to property taxation. However,
services such as emergency services, courts, road improvements and repair, and sanitation must be
provided and expanded as needed, and must be funded from general revenues. Transfers between
the enterprise funds and the General Fund help offset this burden, while sharing it more equitably
among all citizens and institutions.

Financial Analysis of the County's Funds

Governmental Funds

As discussed, governmental funds are reported in the fund statements with a short-term, inflow and outflow
of spendable resources focus. This information is useful in assessing resources available at the end of the
year in comparison with upcoming financing requirements. Governmental funds reported ending fund
balances of$29,497,411 in fiscal year 2006, compared to $21,230,166 in fiscal year 2005, and $21,735,544
in fiscal year 2004. Of these year-end totals, $29,254,155 in fiscal year 2006, $20,991,688 in fiscal year
2005, and $21,473,127 in fiscal year 2004 was unreserved indicating availability for tontinuing County
service requirements.

The total ending fund balances of governmental funds show an increase in fiscal year 2006 of $8,267,245
(or 38.9%) compared to an decrease in fiscal year 2005 of$1 ,185,642 (or 5.3%).

Total taxes in governmental funds were $1,757,274, or 8.2% higher than in fiscal year 2005. The major
change was due to a significant increase in SPLOST revenue collections (13.1 % increase; $1.13 million).
Charges for services showed strength by increasing in fiscal year 2006 to $6,473,221 from $6,142,920 (or
5.4%). However this was offset largely by a decline in fees, fines and forfeirnres which decreased in fiscal
year 2006 to $1,976,793 from $2,212,462 in fiscal year 2005 (or 10.7%).

The governmental funds' expenditures increased by $3,898,408, or 10.8%, in fiscal year 2006, compared to
a decrease of$6,017,991, or 14.3%, in fiscal year 2005. The fiscal year 2006 increase was due primarily to
a greater investment in capital outlays than in fiscal year 2005. The fiscal year 2006 increase related
primarily to increases in Public Safety and Roads, both for operating expenses and capital outlays; while
Sanitation capital outlays also spiked. The increases in these areas also reflected budget expenditure
priorities of the Board ofComrnissioners for the fiscal year 2006.

The County's overall cash flow can vary greatly from month to month. The reason for this is that property
tax revenues, which consist of approximately one-half of General Fund revenue strea~, peak during the
October-February time line. While other General Fund revenues come in during mOI1J:bf. when property
taxes do not, there exists an unstable cash flow environment from March to September. filis is why having
a standard of 25% of expendirnres in the General Fund balance is critical. The standard provides adequate
cash flow to handle these monthly flucrnations, while providing a cushion against any major unexpected
events, with a residual benefit of improving the County's credit rating when it needs to borrow.
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klajor Governmental Funds

The General Fund is the County's primary operating fund and the largest source of day-to-day service
delivery. The General Fund's fund balance decreased by $1,274,173 in fiscal year 2006 and by $1,982,312
in fiscal year 2005. Again, this is due to a long-term structural budget deficit where operating revenues and
transfers in have been insufficient in keeping up with operating expenses and transfers o~t.

The Proprietary Flilids

The proprietary funds statements share the same focus as the government-wide statements, repnrting both
shnrt-term and long-term information about financial status. Each of the fund statements give detailed
information about their financial condition, in addition to the Financial Analysis of the County as a Whole.

Internal Service Fund

Operating income increased dramatically for the Employee Insurance Internal Service Fund. At the close of
fiscal year 2005, $680,282 in proceeds due to the General Fund was written off as uncollectible, although
during the last three fiscal years $423,126 in operating income and $457,825 in cash and cash equivalents
have accrued. UpOll approvillg tI,e management recommendation to write-off the debt to tIre General
FUlld, it was felt that the accrual of cash flow was IIecessary to handle unforeseen large claims, to
minimize potential cost burdens for premiums to participatillg employees, alld to minimize potential
future trallsfel's fl'om the General FUlld.

Agel/cy Flil/ds

An agency fund is used to account for assets held for other funds, governments or individuals. Bulloch
County maintains eight agency funds. A slatement of fiduciary assets and liabilities for the agency funds is
presented on page 31.

Budgetary Highlights I.
The Gel/eral FUI/d - The revenue side of the budget was amended upward by $1,172,381 (or 5.5%)
primarily to reflect better collections of insurance premium taxes and charges for services. Overall, the
County recognized revenues equal to 99.3% of budgeted revenues in thc final appropriated budget. The
total expenditure budget was increased through a budget amendment by $1,320,028 (or 7.0%). Ovcrall, thc
County recognized expenditures equal to $653,070, or only 3.2% above budgeted expenditures in the final
appropriated budget.

On the revenue side of the budget, investment earnings recognized were considerably higher than the
budgeted amnunt. The rates of investment returns were higher than budgeted as the Federal Reserve Board
continued to increase the federal funds rate throughout the year. The County has benefited frnm these
increases and more aggressive treasury management.

On the expenditure side, the most significant variances were in the Public Safety function. particularly in
the Sheriff's Department and the Jail; and in Housing and Development, particularly code enforcement,
planning and zoning and economic development. The primary driver in the Public Safety variance resulted
from a requirement from the county judiciary to add a court security personnel detail and resources to the
Sheriff's Department as well as the lease purchase of vehicles, while Jail costs have cnntinued to escalate
as a result of inmate medical care and the housing of prisoners outside of the County. The primary driver in
the Housing and Development function was a) the lease-purchase of machinery and equipment for code
enforcement and planning and zoning and, b) economic development was simply overspent.
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Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital Assets

The County's investment in capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, for governmental and busincss
type activities as of June 30, 2006 was $43,960,829 and $7,876,327 respectively, for a t'Ltal of$51,837,156.
That compares to fiscal year 2005 numbers of $39,316,233 and $8,090,830 respectively, for a total of
$47,406,963.

The fiscal year 2006 totals in tillS net investment were an 11.8% increase for governmental and a 2.7%
decrease for business-type activities. The overall increase was 9.3% for the County as a whole. The
increase in the governmental activities investment is explained below. See Note 6 for additional
information about changes in capital assets during the fiscal year and outstanding at tht: end of the year.
The following table provides a summary ofcapital asset activity.

Capital Assets

Governmental Activities Business Activities Total

2006 200S 2006 2005 2006 2005

Non-depreciable Assets

llmd 1.745,413 1,745,413 329,177 329,177 2,074,590' 2,074,590

Conslruclion in Progress 2,072,981 1,591,580 2,072,981 1,591.580

Total Non-Ucprcciablc 3,818,394 3,336,993 329,177 329,177 4,147,571 3,666,170

Depreciable Assets

Buildings 23,862,555 22,262,777 6.643.973 6.643,973 30,506,528 28,906,750

Improvements Other Than Buildings 7,136,644 6.926,919 1,179,703 1,142,200 B,316.347 8.069.119

Machinery and EquipmNlI 16,610,208 14,906,872 430,572 363.019 17,040,780 15,269,891

{nfraslruclurc 12,828,476 9,637.735 ,12,828,476 9.637.735

Total Depreciable Assets 60,437,883 53,734,303 8,254,248 8,149,192 IhR,692,13l 61,883,495

Less Accunmlnlf'd Depreciation 20,295,448 17,755,163 707,09R 387,539 21,002,546 18,142,702

Book Value: Depreciable Assets 40,142,435 35,979,140 7,547,150 7,761,653 47,689,585 43,740,793

Percentage Depreciated 33.6% 33.0% 8.6% 4.8% 30.6% 29.3%
------

Total Book Value 43,960,829 39,316,133 7,876,327 8,090,830 51,837,156 47,406,963

The County began reporting its governmental infrastructure constructed each year in fiscal year 2003. The
major increase in infrastructure between fiscal year 2006 and fiscal year 2005 is the addition of several
miles ofnewly-constnlcted roads.

New building facilities consisting of the Georgia State Patrol and a new Public Works Nmex were
essentially completed. The major increase for construction in progress continues to be road and bridge
improvements county-wide and the planned expansion of the County lail-Detention Center.

In the County's business type activities, 8.6% of the asset values were depreciated at June 30, 2006,
compared to 4.8% for fiscal year 2005. In fiscal year 2006 the "improvements other Ihan buildings" and
"machinery and equipment" account categories increased primarily due to the Coun.ty's minor facility
improvements at the Splash in the 'Bora Aquatic Center such as a picnic pavilion, additional kitchen
equipment and miscellaneous furniture and fixtures that serve to embellish the customer iiiperience.
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At June 30, 2006, the depreciable capital assets for governmental activities were 33.6% depreciated. TIlls
percentage is more than the fiscal year 2005 amount of 33.0%. This trelltl illdicates, that overall, the
County is replacing capital assets at a rate that is beloJV depreciation e.....pense. However, it should be
noted that the County has beell aggressively replacing alld improvillg macllinely, equipment alld
infrastructure at all acceleratellpace.

LOllg-term Debt

All of the County's long-lelm oUlstanding debt and notes payable rests exclusively within its governmental
activities, primarily in the General Fund and 2002 Special Purpose Local Option Sales Tax Fund. The
County's business-type activities comprised of enterprise funds reported no outstanding long-term debt or
notes payable either in fiscal year 2006 or 2005.

The governmental activities reported capital leases of $14,363,602, which increased significantly over the
2005 level due largely to the establishment ofthe construction escrow account that will paid for from future
SPLOST 2007 proceeds for the County Jail-Detention Center expansion project. The notes payable for the
water and sewer for Phase I of Gateway Regional Industrial Park were reduced by $38,818, or 5.6% to
$653,870. Compensated absences increased by $18,152 or 5.1 % in fiscal year 2006 to $372,169.

Long-Tenn Debt Obligations

Governmental Activities

2006 2005

Capital Leases 14,363,602 4,271,798

Notes Payable 653,870 691,988

Compl:l1satcd Absences 372.169 354.017

Total t5;389,641 5.317,803

After bac1dng out the $9,325,000 for the capital lease for the jail expansion financing, tpe fiscal year 2006
long-term debt total for the county would have been $6,064,641 or an increase 01'$747,$8 (or 14.1 %) over
2005. Most of the remaining increase consisted of costs related to an equipment master lease arrangement
with SunTrust Leasing Corporation, and a heavy equipment lease with CatepilIar Financial Group.

With the exception noted in overlapping debt for the Bulloch County Board of Education, Bulloch County
has no existing general obligation debt. For both governmental and business type-activities, Bulloch
COUllty has $15,017,472 of olltstmzdillg IOllg-term debt ill tfte form of capital leases alldnotes payable,
less compensated absences. Since 1994, the county has entered into various capital lease agreements for
equipment. As they exist, they are expected to be paid off by 2013. There is one note payable to the
Georgia Environmental Facilities Authority with an outstanding principal amount of $653,870 with
maturity occurring in 2016. Tltis note was for the construction of a water tank and water line extensions at
Gateway Industrial Park whereby the County pays the City of Statesboro for two-thirds of the payment.

In sum, the greater reliallce 011 capital leasillg for machilZery aud eqldpment is tlte result of the
abamlolZment of a prior practice whereby operatillg departmellts previously escrowed machinery alZd
equipmellt replacemellt lIeeds through a Gelleral FUIlt! sub~accou1Zt, aud further symptomatic of the
structural blulget deficit previously described which restricts available cash flow for "pay~as-y()u-g(J"

e."'lpellsillg.

Economic Conditions Affecting the County

The 2006 fiscal year saw Bulloch County's local economy rebounding in the midst ,of a continuing
recovery compared to the relatively anemic performances from the past few years. MPfom a long-term
perspective, the national and state economies may be significantly affected by many factors, including a
growing national debt and trade deficit, rising interest rates and health care costs, inflation, increased
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demands on Social Security as baby-boomers near retirement, a potential downrunl of the housing market,
threat/acts of terrorism and geopolitical instability in tbe Middle East.

Guarded optimism best describes Bulloch County's current economic outlook. In tl,e first half of Fiscal
Year 2007, the County should realize improved economic growth compared to last year from essential
components such as steady job growth and increased multi-unit residential c0m.ITIErcial construction
activity. Though beginning too cool, Bulloch County continues to show increasing residential growth and
commercial development including multiple new residential subdivisions and growing commercial
corridors near Statesboro including Highway 80 West, Highway 67 South, and the area adjacent to East
Georgia Regional Hospital between Veteran's Memorial Highway and Fair Road (aka tl,e Market District).
The downtown areas of Statesboro and Brooklet continue to thrive and expand with the help of directed
efforts toward improvements and beautification. Georgia Southern University continues its steady planned
enrollment and campus expansion and has added an economic catalyst to the community with its
investment in its new School of Information Teclmology. Bulloch County also continued its commitment
to nurture existing industry and businesses that complement its existing business mix, while also planning
for new strategies for developing economic incentives for businesses. Both Briggs and Stratton and
Viracom have expanded their manufacturing operations in Bulloch County. The Wal-Mart Distribution
Center remains the most active high-volume warehousing center of its kind within the corporation. The
tl1ree-year old connty-operated Splash in the 'Boro Aquatic Center had outstanding opening of its first three
seasons drawing over 60 percent of its nearly 100,000 annual customers from outside Bulloch County.
Finally, being on the bonndary of the Savannah metropolitan area offers advantages to Bulloch County
[Tom a regional perspective. The Savannah MSA is poised to be among the state's fastest growing regions
in 2006 and 2007, especially in the economic sectors related to job growth, tourism, retail, real estate and
finance, information services and the expanding activity of the Port of Savannah \vhich will spur the
construction ofadditional warehouse space for processing for import-export distribution.

In order for Bulloch Coumy to retain its excellent quality of life advantages, the community will have to
address many critical issues Oll its horizon. These issues include the likelihood of gradual shifting within
the County's economic base as windfall tax revenues from industrial growth during the last decade is offset
from increasing growth in the retail, services and construction sectors. Another challqnge is to continue
industrial growth because of intense competition by other communities in the region lfor new economic
development projects.

The following key economic indicators reflect the economic condition of the County.

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

Population growth remains at a steady annual growth level of 2.0%. Bulloch County population in
April 2005 is estimated at 61,454. The 2000 Census enumerated a county population of55,983.
The Consumer Price Index for the Urban South Consumers increased from 5.2% to 7.8% between June
30,2005 and Jnne 30, 2006, largely as the result of higher prices for energy and construction activities.
The unemployment rate for Bulloch Connty in calendar year 2005 was 4.3% which is below the State
average unemployment rate of 5.3%, and has decreased from the prior year rate of4.4%.
The county's employed workforce increased from 27,657 to 29,125 from 2004 to 2005, a 5.3%
increase.
The ad valorem tax rate for Fiscal Year 2006 was set at 8.627 mills, which was a reduction from 8.63
mills in Fiscal Year 2005.
Per capita income for Bulloch County has increased from $19,674 in 2003 to $19,981 in 2004, or
1.6%, thus growing below the rate of the Urban-South Consumer Price Index, signaling that there is
less purchasing power for county citizens.
County business activity is mixed. Sales taxes rebounded 3.7% during 2005 afte~ a 7.0% decline in
2004. However, building permits levels and the construction of mid-to-upper level income honsing are
now declining upon doubling over a four-year period from 2000-2004. The total number of new
housing units approved declined slightly county wide in 2005 from 566 new units permitted to 543.

~dt
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Despite mixed results, Bulloch County has a growing population and economy influenced by a strong
industrial base, a growing regional public university, a regional medical center and increasing medical
specialties, a regional retail base and potential spin-off growth from the greater Savannah area. The
manufacturing and wholesale sectors show promise for growth. In addition, the water and sewer lines are
being installed in the Gateway Industrial Park, Phase II. This will give the County Development Authority
over 300 acres of marketable land for industrial expansion. The heahh care segme,,! shows no sign of
weakness, and new physicians continue to move to the area. Our projection goipg forward is that the
statewide economy will continue to moderate, but virtually all segments of U,e local and regional economy,
with the possible exception of single-family housing, will strengthen in fiscal year 2007.

Summary

In summary, at tlle close of June 30, 2006, Bulloch County government currently has adequate and
favorable financial streugth, liquidity, a strong capital asset base and minimal debt. However, its operating
position, particularly in the key General Fund, has declined dramatically over the last five fiscal years
where fund balance has declined from $9.7 million at the close of fiscal year 2001, to $5.4 million at the
close of fiscal year 2006 (or 44%). This is due again to a convergence of factors that has resulted in an
annual structural budget deficit where recurring revenues are not sufficient to meet recurring expenditures.
This condition exists despite the appearance of growth in the cnunty's population and economy. If this
trend continues without correction, Bulloch County's fund balance could be exllausted by fiscal year 2010,
thus severely affecting its operational capabilities.

In fiscal years 2005 and 2006, the County attempted to restrict expenditure growth by reducing employee
wage increases and defening or eliminating certain operating and capital expenditures. To leverage cash
flow, the County instituted limited purchases of needed machinery and equipment through capital or
operating leases. Several County departments also raised fees and users charges where discretion prevailed,
to cover the full cost of providing the service. Furthermore, the County has consolidated and centralized
administrative functions such as human resources and purchasing, and has audited operations for better
efficiencies. However, the increasing demand for services by local citizens, unfunded mandates from
higher levels of government for additional services, and extraordinary inflation in gasoline and construction
prices have offset these austerity measures. Due to lhe aforementioned reliance of the ~roperty tax ratc as
its largest manipulative revenue source, in Fiscal Year 2008, Bulloch County will strongly have to consider
a property tax increase or determine what services can be eliminated to correct the structural deficit.

The County will be looking at four key implementation items in fiscal years 2007 and 2008 to improve
both general efficiency and financial reporting. They are: I) issue a request for proposal to consolidate
banking service to a single institution in order to improve treasury managemenl~ 2) init~a(e an electronic
timekeeping system to improve the accuracy and operation of payroll services; 3) utilize the
aforementioned initiative to progress toward true fund accounting and a full fledged modified accrual
accounting system; and, 4) continue carrying out the consolidated purchasing function which includes the
task of entering encumbrances electronically into the accounting system, thus, giving more accurate
financial reporting.

Contacting the County's Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the County's finances, comply with
finance-related laws and regulations, and demonstrate the County's commitment to public accountability. If
you have questions about this report or would like to request additional infonnation, you may contact:

Thomas M. Couch
County Manager
115 North Main Street
Statesboro, Georgia, 30459
(912) 764-6245
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BULLOCH COUNTY. GEORGIA
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2006

Primary Govemmenl Component Units
Go\'emmetllal Business-lype Bulloch County Development Anthoril)'

Aetivilies AClivities Total Board of He:l1th of Bulloch Counly
ASSETS
Current Asscts: L
Cash S 30,929,344 S 589,614 S 31,518,958 S 1,293,837 S 503,243
Receiv:lbles:
Taxes 497,350 ;( 497,350
Intergovemmenlill 1,036,138 ,.~1 1,036,138 109,794
Internal balances (29,477) 29,477
Other 201,033 400 101,433 644

Due from component unit 146,572 146,572
Prepaid items 243,256 143,256

In\'enlories % l' 56,184 56,184

Capilal Asscts: J "
Nondepreciable eilpital assets 3,818,394 319,177 4,147.571 4,988,100
Depn:eiilblc capilal assets, ncl 40.141.435 7.547.150 47.689.585 140,175 4.061.902

TOlal Assets 77.~1.229 8.495.818 85.537.047 1.643.806 9.553.889

LIABILITIES
Current Li:lbilities:

Accounls payable 2,145,809 2,145,809 8,661
Accmed expenses 455,439 33,089 488,518 7,145
Due 10 primary go\'enulIenl 146,572
Due 10 other governments 198,307
Claims payable 180,1,16 180,146
Other linbililtS 31.856 31,856

Compensaled ilbsellees payable 74,434 74,434 80,736

C:mitnlleases pnyable 818,772 818,772
NOles payable 53,1'10 53,1·10 9211,006

Long-Tern! Linbilities:
CompenSilled absences payable (llel of current ponion) 297,735 297,735
Capilal lenses pnyable (net ofcurrclIt ponion) 13,54,1,830 13,544,830

Notes paynble (llet o[cuITCnt ponion) 600,730 600,730

Total Linbilities 18,202,891 33,089 18.235,9110 27~ 1,090,385

NET ASSETS
In...eslcd in ellpiltll assets. net of relilled debt 38,008,7'11 7,876,]27 45,885,068 140,175 8,121,996
Restricled for:
Capilal projecls 13.560,181 13,560.181

Other purposes 1r 1,499,598 1,499,598 520,814

Unrestricled .'" ~D 5,769,818 586.402 6.356,220 703,774 341.508

Tolal Net Assets S 58,838.338 S 8,462,729 S 67.301.067 S 1,364,763 S 8.463,5~

Sec accompanying noles 10 the basic financial statements.

-20-



BULLOCH COUNn',GEORGIA
SfATEMENT OF AcnvmES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2006

Net {E.~lIlel Rc"eTlllC ami
Clwu!u ill Net Anc!!

Pto~r:unlFunC1ion

FttS. Finn. iIlId
Ch:Iren rOI St01Ces

Optr.sUllr;Gt:l/l!!
:urd COntributiollS

C;lpiuIGr.ws
and Conlribu1ions

Gonmmcnul
AW.;un

Butincu-l~pe

Actiwitin Tou'

Component Unl!!
Bulloch Coum~' DcnlopmCllI Autbarity
Bo3nl ofHulth of Bulloch Count,·

Prhll:l1'T GG'~l'1Im~al

GG,'ullm~nlal A~lhille:!

General &o\~mm~nt
Judici.11
Publi~ wety
Roads
S..... italion
Health;md "olf:ue
Lrbrancs:md r~ereatioll

AirJ10n
HQlIsinS ami de\'eloJ1m~nl
Int~lJ:onmmeTlClI

In!C'ftSl
Tut,l r:U\"U'1lmn,,1 ,tlll·hlt.

3,044,111
2.317,131

1l,32I,746
],440,%6
1,111,1]]

H2,219
],115,991

597.260
1,093,366
3,910,341

194.49G
34.112..%1

111.131
~D,6113

5.130.131
114,119
,1W,l91

1.44~.6B9

~11..410
4]4 ..01~

9.319.379

1.111.194
105,261
21,2JG

229,I1G

11,016
613,611

(991.6ll)
(1 ..65U(7)
(1,156,117)
(2,GI9,315)
(1,231,]40)

(m,219)
(2,359,G77)

21,515
(57!,2ii51

(],J04,G11)
(l94.49GI

(21.496.1051

BUIIIiUl-lvpt AclMtl<:s
Aqu.ui~ CCII!C"
'\J:ribuSlll~!5 C~nltl

Talal husloo:SJ.-lYllt ulhillu

1.120.527
IU,.SOO

I.2G9,021

1.11').139
111.119

1.261.941

69.232
(10.JIII

fl,0791

TOlal- Primary Co.'ualll~ol J5 J91.9U 10.651.321 12I,497,1~)

Net Alur. Elld ar Yur

12,~46

59.0n

11.G34

11.634

9J5,1R7

935.111

1.007,421

l.4lilJ().l

124,127

'24.127

11,'42.10] 11,142,103
9,714.1G) 'J.714,163
1.31],602 UU,G02
9~B,1I6 941.116
~6.0B~ 56,UI5

IGS,U3 14,915 31U,141
5]3.60'1 533.609

2J,/i44,lll 14,91~ 24,(,5'.1,72G

129.143' 29.143

24.615.4(,11 ':4_HII 24.,{,59.126

3,III,6r.3 43.179 3,161.1I42 124.127

51,031,117 1.442.13& 65,411.023 1,239.936
fIJ19.!!2l (22.116\ 11.341.1911

51.131.3]1 1.462.729 67.JOI,Qt;7 1.364.163

1.703.161

1.5117.4')'&
196.261

HO,1I13
I.1IS.,1Sl

1.736,565

Tt:lnlfefS

Challr:c ill Nfl At.U11

Nfl Anett [kr:laa;ol: IIf Vear
rno! pc:nod adllll1mClllS

G~IIfr.l1 Re'ullu
PIOpmrU-\et
S~ltll;L\n

IIlIUr:ln~C pn:mlUm 1:1.."

Other Ia.\~s

Galli 011 nl~ of t:lpil:l! ane!!
11I1~ICll um~d

Mij.Celbn~nlls

2.319.112

1,903,4111
416.232

COlllpoo~al Uoiu:
Bulloch CoulIly Boanl ofUe:l!th
Dc\cloplD~nl Aulhonl~' ofDuUoch Counly

To"l Cumpuant Uaill

Scc nCtornpallyilig notes (0 the basic fiuancinl stil(cmCl1IS.
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BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
BAlANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30. 2006

Other TOIaI
Governmental Governmental

General LOST SPLOST SPLOST02 SPLOST 07 Funds Funds
ASSETS <

Cash 55,424,149 S 697,004 $ 703,018 S12,572,927 $ 9,293.248 S 1,781,173 S30,471,519
Receivables:
Taxes 497,350 497,350
IntcrgovcmmcnUlI 128,854 907,284 1,036.138
Other 9,649 103,438 113,087

Due from other funds 251,526 1,165 252,691
Due from component unit 146,572 146,572
Prepaid items 243.256 243,256
Inventories 56,184 56.184

TOTAL ASSETS 56,701.356 S 697,004 5 703.018 S13.480,211 S 9,293.248 51.941.960 S32,816.797

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 402,223 $ 17,868 5 1,332.223 5 319.919 5 73,576 S 2.145,809
Accrued payroll 367,340 88,099 455,439
Due to other funds 1.165 2,534 269,230 272,929
Deferred revenue 413,353 413,353
Other 20.399 11,457 31.856

TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,204.480 17.868 1,334,757 319.919 442,362 3.319,386

FUND BALANCES
Reserved for prepaid items 243,256 243,256
Unreserved:

Undesignated, reported in:
Generul fund 5,253,620 5,253,620
Special revenue funds

l.
1,499,598 1,499,598

Capilal projects funds 679.136 5 703.018 12.145,454 8.973.329 22.500.937

TOTAL FUND 8ALA.NCES 5.496.876 679.136 703.018 12.145,454 8.973.329 1.499.598 29,497,411

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 56.701,356 5 697.004 $ 703.018 S 13,480.211 S 9.293.248 S 1.941.960 S32.816.797

See accompanying note to the basic financial statements.
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BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2006

Total Governmental Fund Balances

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of net assets are different because:

$ 29,497,41 I

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds:

Cost
Less accumulated depreciation

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current
period expenditures and therefore are deferred in the funds:

Property taxes

$ 64,256,277
(20,295,448) 43,960,829

4 I3,353

Interfund receivables and payables between governmental funds
are reported on the fund balance sheet but eliminated on the
government-wide statement of net assets:

Interfund receivables
Interfund payables

The internal service fund is used by management to charge the costs
of the employee health self insurance program to individual funds.
Certain assets and liabilities ofthe internal service fund are included
in the governmental activities column in the statement of net assets

Liabilities, including capital leases, notes payable and compensated
absences are not due and payable in the current period and
therefore are not reported in the funds but are reported on the
statement of net assets:

$ 252,561
(252,561 )

I.

356,386

Capital leases payable
Notes payable
Compensated absences

Net Assets Of Governmental Activities

$ (14,363,602)
(653,870)
(372, 169) (15,389,64 I)

$ 58,838,338

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAL RJNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2006

OIlier Tolal
Govemmenlal Goyemmetlml

General LOST SPLOST SPLOST02 SPLOSTtY7 Funds Funds

REVENUES
Taxes 5 13,485,291 S 9,714,763 S 44,470 523,244,524

Licenses lUld pcnnit5 618,137 618,137

Charges for services 3,422,192 3,051,0:29 6,473,221

Fees, fines and forfcitures 1,745,052 231,741 1,976,79]

IntergovernmentnJ 2,160,610 S 543,167 242,90] 276,926 3,22],606

Interest 271,700 72,722 S 33,921 426,087 S 32,573 27,8]0 865,833

Other 467,]59 29,250 371,399 868,008
TotuJ rcyenut,-s 22,171,341 615,889 33,921 10,413,003 32,573 4,003,395 537,270,122

EXPENDITURES
Current

Gcncml sovenllnent 3,21'1,502 3,214,502

Judicial 2,221,531 2,221,531
Public snfel)' 10,798,'"1 384,244 1,371,139 12,553,79'1

Ronds 1,940,936 M,06<1 2,005,000

SnnilnliOll 1,695,542 1,695,542

Henlth nnd welfnre 239,585 239,585

Librnries lind recrenlion 449,000 3,181,726 3,630,716

Airpon 502,839 502,839

1·lousing nnd development 867,523 14,188 881,711

Cnpillll oUllu)'
Genernl government 317,803 317,803

Public safet)' 7,490 1,122,661 111,987 1,242,138

Snnitntiotl 299,169 299,169

Ronds '1,075,713 100,678 1,289,008 5,465,399

RecfCnlion 271,280 36,897 308,177

Airpon 199,505 199,505

HOllsing and developmcnl 231,985

I:
231,985

Debl service:
Principal 324,610 327,228 235,513 17,·168 904,819

Inh:rest 144,366 22,197 26,011 1,922 194,496

Intc:rgovcmmcntnl 675,677 3,304,671 3,980,348

Toul1 expenditures 20,876,1'11 4,425.138 407,337 6,998.437 384,244 6,997,772 40,089,069

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER

(UNDER) EXPENDITURES 1,295,200 (3,809,249) (373,416) 3,414,566 (351.671) (2.994,377) (2,818,947)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 151,546 3,208,973 3,360,519

TmnsfcfS OUI (3,208,973) (99,509) (52,281) (3,360,763 )

Proceeds from eapit.i:l1leasc:s 391,780 959,815 173,990 9,325,000 107,920 10,958,505

Snle of cnpit.'l11lS.Sc:1S 96.27,1 9,071 105,345

Total other financing sources (uses) (2.569.373) 959.815 74,481 9,325,000 3,273,683 11,0ti3,606

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES (1,27-1,173) (2,849,434) (373,416) 3,489,047 8,973,329 279,306 8.244,659

FUND BALANCES, JULY I. 2005 6,771,049 3.518,570 1.076.434 8,656.407 1,197,706 21,230,166

PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS 22,586 22,586

FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30, 2006 S 5,496,876 S 679,136 S 703,018 S 12,145,454 $8,973,329 51,499,598 529,497,411,

See accompllnying notes to the basic finuncial statements
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BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF REVENUES,

EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

Net Change In Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
statement of activities arc different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However,
in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated
over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense. This
is the amount by which capitalized capital outlay exceeded
depreciation expense in the current period.

Depreciation expense
Capital outlay

Revenues in the slnlemenl of activities that do not provide current
financial resources are not reported as revenues in the governmental funds.

Property taxes:
Deferred @ 6/30/06
Deferred @ 6/30/05

Elimination of transfers between governmental funds:
Transfers in
Transfers out

Governmental funds do not report the cost of disposed capitnl assets but the cost
is reported on the statement of activities.

The internal service fund used by management to charge the costs of the employee
health insurance program to individual funds is not reported in the government-wide
statement of activiites. Governmental fund expenditures and related internal service
fund revenues arc eliminated.

Other financing sources for the inception of capital leases are reported on the fund
level operating statement but are reported as a liability on the government-wide
financial statements.

Repayment of notes and capital leases principal is an expenditure in the governmental
funds, but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement
of net assets.

Capital absences reported in the statement of activities, do not require the use of
current financial resources and therefore nrc not reported as expenditures in
governmental funds.

Liability @ 6/30/06
Liability @ 6130/05

Change In Net Assets of Governmental Activities

$ (3,144,037)
7,837,993

413,353
(468,593)

3,290,353

(3,290,353) I.

(372,169)

354,017 1.li

$ 8,244,659

4,693,956

(55,240)

(49,260)

356,386

( 10,958,505)

904,819

(18,152)

$ 3,118,663

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2006

Vnrinnce
Original Final ~ Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)

REVENUES
Ta'Xcs:

Property S 11,761,906 11.196,695 $ 11,197,343 $ 648
Alcoholic beverage 185,000 200,186 203,947 3,761
Insurnnce premium 1,295,656 1,383,602 1,383,602
Other 622,000 686,988 700,399 13,411

Licenses nnd pcnnits 531,200 603,327 618,137 14,810
Charges for services 2,308,600 3,593,663 3,422,192 (171,471)
Fines and forfeitures 1,455,000 1,801,400 1,745,052 (56,348)
Intergovernmental 2,342,041 2,150,719 2,160,610 9,891
Interest 70,000 245,400 272,700 27,300
Other 576,275 458,079 467,359 9,280

Total revenues 21,147,678 22,320,059 22.171,341 (148,718)

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General government:
County government 1,074,462 1,128,215 1,118,779 9,436
Elections 112,543 76,203 73,157 3,046
General government buildings 522,401 562,749 564,492 (1,743)
Risk management/General insumnce 416,000 398,000 379,818 18,182
Tax assessor 642,352 601,484 606,282 (4,798)
Tax commissioner 482,935 465,844 471,974 (6,130) v'

Total general government 3,250,693 3,232.495 3,2t.s02 17,993

Judicial:
Clerk of Courts 585,193 586,780 596,700 (9,920)
Superior Court 190,962 208,478 208,477 1
Stnte Court 346,324 337,530 336,141 1,389
District Attorney 150,000 150,000 150,000
Indigent defense 300,000 329,956 294,382 35,574
Magislrote Court 470,304 436,222 444,101 (7,879)
Probnte Court 175,538 190,724 191,730 (1,006)

TOlal judicial 2,218,321 2,239,690 2,221,531 18,159

Public safely:
Animal control 76,346 71,827 71,455 372
Animal shelter 132,484 143,561 143,513 48
Coroner 32,065 31,907 31,548 359
County correctional 1,544,538 1,532,740 1,555,984 (23,244)
Public safety administration 139,156 111,600 110,682 918
Probation 345,638 332,974 345,777 (12,803)
Emergency medical service 1,742,118 1,797,108 1,793,648 3,460
Fire protection 136,180 122,860 If2.419 441
Jail- 2,572,686 3,232,041 3,388,827 (156,786)
Rescue 31,078 20,960 10,202 758
Sheriff - 2,708,587 3,011.170 3,214,356 (203,186)

Total public safety 9,460,876 10,408,748 1O.7ll!lf II (389,663)

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements,
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BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES [N FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2006

Variance
Original Final L Positive
Budget Budget Actun) (Negative)

EXPENDITURES (Continued)
Roads $ 1,276.422 $ [,703,950 $ 1,940,936 $ (236,986)

Health and welfare:
Health department 160,900 160,900 160,900
Other health and welfare 104,200 93,865 78,685 15,180

TOlal health and welfare 265,100 254,765 239,585 15,180

Librnries 449,000 449,000 449,000

Housing and development:
Agricultural resources 161,102 159,962 169,038 (9,076)
Forestry commission 10,012 10,012 10,012
Building inspections 240,416 224,133 228,477 (4,344)
Planning and zoning 128,452 111,502 124,261 (12,759)
Code enforcement 47,378 45,899 63,768 (17,869)
Economic development 215,000 253,882 271,967 (18,085)

Total housing and development 802,360 805,390 S67,523 (62,133)

Debt Service:
Principal 444,166 316,113 324,610 (8,497)
Interest 143,105 137,243 144,366 (7,123)

Total debt service 587,271 453,356 468,976 (15,620)

Intergovernmental - Bulloch County Board of Education 593,000 675,677
~

Total expenditures 18,903,043 20,223,071 20,876,141 (653,070)

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 2,244,635 2,096,988 1,295,200 . (801,788)

OTHER FINANCfNG SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 185,000 253,047 151,546 (101,501 )
Transfers oul (3,114,055) (3,208,975) (3,20lf,973) 2
Sale of capital assets 78,258 96,274 18,016
Proceeds from capital Icases 391,780 391,780

Total other financing sources (uses) (2,929,055) (2,877,670) (2,569,373) 308,297

NET CHANGE fN FUND BALANCE $ (684,420) $ (780,682) (1,274,173) $ (493,491 )

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR 6,771,049

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR $ 5,496,876

See accompanying notes to the basic financial stalements.
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BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2006

Governmental

L Activities - Internal
Business Type Activities - Enterprise Funds Service Fund

Aquatic Agribusiness Employee
Center Center Total Insurance Fund

ASSETS
Current Assets

Cash $ 513,929 $ 75,685 $ 589,614 $ 457,825
Accounts receivable 400 400 87,946
Due from other funds 29,607 29,607

Total Current Assets 543,536 76,085 619,621 545,771

Noncurrent Assets
Capital Assets

Land 73,305 255,872 329,177
Buildings and improvements 4,866,247 2,957,429 7,823,676
Machinery and equipment 426,887 3,685 430,572
Less accumulated depreciation (488,494) (218,604) (707,098)
Total Capital Assets 4,877,945 2,998,382 7,876,327

Total Assets 5,421,481 3,074,467 8,495,948 545,771

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities

Claims payable
33,08J'

180,146
Accrued payroll 33,089
Due to other funds 130 130 9,239

Total Liabilities 33,089 130 33,219 189,385

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets 4,877,945 2,998,382 7,876,327
Unrestricted 510,447 75,955 586,402 356,386

Total Net Assets $ 5,388,392 $ 3,074,337 $ 8,462,729 $ 356,386

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
-28-



BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

Governmental
~

Activities - Internal

Business TyPe Activities - Enterprise Funds Service Fund
Aquatic Agribusiness Employee

Center Center TOlal Insurance Fund
OPERATING REVENUES

Charges for services $ 1,189,759 $ 1,189,759

Premiums $ 2,082,562

Rents $ 78,189 78,189

Total operating revenues 1,189,759 78,189 1,267,948 2,082,562

OPERATING EXPENSES

Administration 877,653 71,815 949,468 328,628

Depreciation 242,874 76,685 319,559

Claims 1,376,907

Total operating expenses 1,120,527 148,500 1,269,027 1,705,535

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 69,232 (70,311) (1,079) 377,027

NONOPERATING REVENUES

Interest 14,915 14,915 8,458

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS 84,147 (70,3 I I) 13,83 f. 385,485

TRANSFERS IN 95,823 3,686 99,509

TRANSFERS OUT (65,181) (4,985) (70,166) (29,099)

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 114,789 (71,610) 43,179 356,386

NET ASSETS BEGINNING OF YEAR 5,296,189 3,145,947 8,442,136

PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS (22,586) (22,586)

NET ASSETS END OF YEAR $ 5,388,392 $ 3,074,337 $ 8,462,729 $ 356,386

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

Governmental

ACliviilcs - Internal

Business Type AClivilies - Enterprise Funds Service Fund

Aqulltic Agribusiness Employee

Center Cenler notal Insurwlcc Fund

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATrNG ACTIVITIES
Cash received from customers $ 1,189,759 $ 77,789 $ 1,267,548 $ 2,082,562
Cash payments to employees for services (388,614) (26,318) (414,932)

Cash payments for goods and services (478,536) (45,497) (524,033) (328,628)
Cash payments for claims (J ,504,707)

Net cash provided by operating activities 322,609 5,974 328,583 249,227

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FrNANCING
ACTIVITIES
Advances/repayments to olher funds (192,341) (9,866) (202,207)

Transfers in 95,823 3,686 99,509
Transfers oul (65,181) (4,985) (70,166) (29,099)

(161,699) (11,165) (172,864) (29,099)

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of capital assets (101,371) (3,685) (105,056)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investment earnings 14,915 14,915 8,458

NET rNCREASE rN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 74,454 (8,876) I. 65,578 228,586

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, JULY 1,2005 439,475 84,561 524,036 229,239

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, JUNE 30, 2006 $ 513,929 $ 75,685 $ 589,614 '$ 457,825

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO NET
CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income (loss) $ 69,232 $ (70,311) $ (1,079) $ 377,027

Adjustments:
Depreciation 242,874 76,685 319,559
(Increase) decrease in operating assets:

Accounts receivable (400) (400) (87,946)

Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Claims payable (39,854)

Accrued payroll 10,503 10,503
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 322,609 $ 5,974 $ 328,583 $ 249,227

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

AGENCY FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2006

ASSETS

Cash

LIABfLITlES

Due to other entities and individuals

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2006

Bulloch County, Georgia (the "County") operates under a Conmussioner - County Manager fonn of
Govenunent. The County is governed by a board of seven commissioners elected by.the voters of the County.

NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the County have been prepared in confonnity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States (GAAP) as applied to governments. The Govenunental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for govenunental accounting and financial reporting. The
County also applies Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) statements and interpretations issued on or
before November 30, 1989, to its govenunental and business-type activities at the govenunent-wide financial
reporting level and to its enterprise funds at the fund reporting level, provided they do not conflict with or
contradict GASB pronouncements.

The most significant of the County's accounting policies are described below.

I-A. Reporting Entity

The reporting entity is comprised of the primary govenunent, component units and other organizations that are
included to ensure that the financial statements are not misleading. The primary govenunent of the County
consists of all funds, departments, boards and agencies that are not legally separate from the County.

Component units are legally separate organizations for which the County is finjncially accountable. The
County is financially accountable for an organization if the County appoints a voting majority of the
organization's governing board and (I) the County is able to significantly influence the programs or services
perfonned or provided by the organizations; or (2) the County is legally entitled to or can otherwise access the
organization's resources; the County is legally obligated or has otherwise asswned the responsibility to finance
the deficits of, or provide financial support to, the organization; or the County is obligated for the debt of tlle
organization. Component units also may include orgaiuzations that are fiscally dependent on the County in that
the County approves the budget, levies their taxes or issues their debt.

The component unit columns included on the government-wide financial statements identify the financial data
of the County's discretely presented component units. They are reported separately to emphasize that they are
legally separate from the County.
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BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

A brief description of the County's discretely presented component units follows:

L
Development Authority of Bulloch County (the Authority) - The Authority was created under Georgia statue
to promote the induslIial and economic development of Statesboro and Bulloch County. The County appoints a
majority of the Authority's board members, approves the Authority's budget, and provides a significant portion
of the Authority's revenues. Complete financial statements for the Authority can be obtained from their
administrative office at:

Development Authority of Bulloch County
102 South Main Street
Statesboro, Georgia

Bulloch County Board of Health - The Bulloch County Board of Health provides health care services and
health education to residents of Bulloch County. The Health Department receives financial support from
Bulloch County, Georgia, the State of Georgia and the Federal Government. The County Commission appoints
a majority of the Board of Directors. Complete financial statements for the Bulloch County Board of Health
can be obtained from their administrative office at: ..

Bulloch County Board of Health
I West AllInan Street
Statesboro, Georgia

I-B. Basis of Presentation I.

The County's basic financial statements consist of govemment-wide statements, including astatement of net
assets and a statement of activities, and fund financial statements, which provide a more detailed level of
financial infonnation.

Government-wide Financial Statements - The government-wide financial statements include the statement of
net assets and the statement of activities. These statements report financial infonnation for the County as a
whole. The primary govenunent and the component units are presented separately within these financial
statements with the focus on the primaIy government. Fiduciary activities are not included at the govemment
wide reporting level. Individual funds are not displayed but the statements distinguish governmental activities,
generally supported by taxes, grants and the County's general revenues, from business-type activities, generally
financed in whole or part with service chaI'ges to external customers.

The statement of net assets presents the financial position of the govenunental and business-type activities of
the County and its discretely presented component units. .

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and prqgram revenues for each
function of the County's governmental activities and for each identifiable activity of.ffie business-type activities
of the County. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a function aIld therefore clearly
identifiable to that particular function. The County does not allocate indirect expenses to functions in the
statement of activities.
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BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The statement of activities reports the expenses of a given function offset by ~rogram revenues directly
connected with tlle functional program. A function is an assembly of similar activities and may include portions
of a fund or swnmarize more than one fund to capture the expenses and program revenues associated with a
distinct functional activity. Program revenues include: (I) charges for services which report fees and other
charges to users of the County's services; (2) operating grants and contributions which finance annual operating
activities including restricted investment income; and (3) capital grants and contributions which fund the
acquisition, construction, or rehabilitation of capital assets. These revenues are subject to externally imposed
restrictions to these program uses. For identifying to which function program revenue pertains, the determining
factor for charges Jor services is which function generates the revenue. For grants and contributions, the
determining factor is to which function the revenues are restricted.

Other revenue sources not properly included with program revenues are reported as general revenues of tlle
County. The comparison of direct expenses with program revenues identifies the extent to which each
govenunental function and each identifiable business activity is self-financing or draws from the general
revenues of the County.

Fund Financial Statements - During the year, the county segregates transactions related to certain County
functions or activities in separate funds in order ~o aid financial management and to demonstrate legal
compliance. Fund financial statements are designed to present financial information of the County at this more
detailed level. Fund financial statements are provided for govenunental, proprietary, and fiduciary funds.

I.
Major individual governmental funds are reported in separate columns with composite colunms for non-major
funds. Fiduciary funds are reported by type.

Fund Accounting - The County uses funds to maintain its financial records during the year. A fund is a fiscal
and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts. The City uses t~ee categories of funds:
governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary.

Governmental Funds - Government funds are those through which most governmental functions
typically are fmanced. Governmental fund reporting focuses on the sources, uses and balances of current
financial resources. Expendable assets are assigned to the various govenunental funds according to the
purposes for which they mayor must be used. Fund liabilities are assigned to the fund from which they will be
liquidated. The County reports the difference between goverrmlental fund assets and liabilities as fund balance.
The following are the County's major govenunental funds:

The General Fund - The general fund accounts for all financial resources except those required
to be accounted for in another n.md. The general fund's fund balance is available to the County
for any purpose provided it is expended or transferred according to tl1e general laws of the State
of Georgia. M
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BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

SPLOST, SPLOST 02, and SPLOST 07 {;'unds - These funds account for the special purpose
local option sales tax collected pursuant to a referendum for various c~pital improvements within
the County. The SPLOST 07 fund is also accounting for the proceeds from a capital lease to be
used for expansion of the county jail. The lease will be repaid with SPLOST 07 fi.mds.

LOST Fund - This fund accounts for the local option sales tax collected pursuant to a
referendum for various capital improvements within the County.

Proprietary Funds - Proprietary fund reporting focuses on the determination of operating income,
changes in net assets, financial position and cash flows. The proprietary funds are classified as enterprise funds
and internal service funds. The following are the County's major enterprise funds:

Aquatic Center - This fi.md accounts for the activities at the County's recreational water park at
Mill Creek Regional Park.

Agribusiness Center - This fund accounts for the activities associated with the operation of the
Agribusiness Center building owned by the County.

Fiduciary Funds - Fiduciary fund reporting focuses on net assets. The County's fiduciary funds are
agency funds. These agency funds are custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve
measurement of results of operations. Constitutional officers use these funds to teml10rarily hold assets.

/.
l-C. Measurement Focus

Government-wide Financial Statements - The government-wide financial statements are prepared using the
economic resources measurement focus. All assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of the
County are included on the statement of net assets. The statement ofactivities reports ~evenues and expenses.

Fund Financial Statements - All governmental funds are accounted for using a flow of current financial
resources measurement focus. With this measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities generally
are included on the balance sheet. The statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances
reports the sources (i.e., revenues and other financing sources) and uses (i.e., expenditures and other financing
uses) of current financial resources. This approach differs from the manner in which the governmental
activities of the government-wide financial statements are prepared. Governmental fund financial statements
therefore include a reconciliation with brief explanations to better identify the relationship between the
government-wide statements and the governmental fund statements.

Like the government-wide statements, all proprietary fund types are accounted for on a flow of economic
resources measurement focus on both financial reporting levels. All assets and all liabilities associated with the
operation of these funds are included on the statements of net assets. The stateml'l/),~s of changes in fund net
assets present increases (i.e., revenues) and decreases (i.e., expenses) in total net assets. The statement of cash
flows provides infonnation about how the County finances and meets the cash flow needs of its proprietary
activities.
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BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

I-D. Basis of Accounting
Basis of accounting detennines when transactions are recorded in the financial records and reported on the
financial statements. Government-wide financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting.

At the fund reporting level, the governmental funds use the modified accrual basis of accounting and fiduciary
funds use the accrual basis of accounting. Proprietary funds use the accrual basis of accounting at both
reporting levels. Differences in the accrual and the modified accrual basis of accounting arise in the recognition
of revenue, the recording of deferred revenue, and in the presentation of expenses versus expenditures.

Revenues - Exchange Transactions - Revenue resulting from exchange transactions, in which each party
gives and receives essentially equal value is recorded on the accrual basis when the exchange takes place. On
the modified accrual basis, revenue is recorded when the exchange takes place and in the fiscal year in which
the resources are measurable and become available. Available means that the resources will be collected within
the current fiscal year or are expected to be collected soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the
current fiscal year. For the County, the phrase "available for exchange transactions" means expected to be
received within 60 days of year-end.

Revenue - Non-exchange Tra!1sactions - Non-exchange transactions in which the County receives value
without directly giving equal value in retum, include sales taxes, property taxes, grants and donations. On an
accrual basis, revenue from sales taxes is recognized in the period in which tlui taxable sale takes place.
Revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes lare levied. Revenue from
grants and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied.
Eligibility requirements include timing requirements, which specify the year when the resources are required to
be used or the year when use is first pennitted, matching requirements, in which the County m'ust provide local
resources to be used for a specified purpose, and expenditure requirements, in which the resources are provided
to the County on a reimbursement basis. On a modified accrual basis, revenue from n.on-exchange transactions
also must be available (i.e., collected within 60 days) before it can be recognized.

Under the modified accrual basis, the following revenue sources are considered to be susceptible to accrual:
property taxes, sales taxes, interest and federal and state grants.

DeferredlUnearned Revenue - Deferred revenue arises when assets are recognized before revenue recognition
criteria have been satisfied.

On governmental fund financial statements (i.e., on the modified accrual basis), receivables that will not be
collected within the available period have been reported as deferred revenue (i.e., they are measurable but not
available) rather than as revenue.

Grants and entitlements received before the eligibility requirements are met (e.gA,iicash advances) also are
recorded as deferred revenue.
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BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Deferred revenue is reported at the fund financial reporting level but reclassified as "unearned revenue" on the
government-wide statement of net assets, where applicable. ~

Expenses/Expenditures - On the accrual basis of accounting, expenses are recognized at the time they are
incurred. On the modified accrual basis, expenditures generally are recognized in the accounting period in
which the related fund liability is incurred and due, if measurable.

I-E. Assets, Liabilities and Net Assets

Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments

Cash and cash equivalents include amounts in demand deposits as well as short-term investments with a
maturity date within three months of the date acquired by the County.

Investments are stated at fair value based on quoted market prices.

Georgia law authorizes the County to invest in the following type of obligations:

•
•
•

•
•
•
•
•

Obligations of the State of Georgia or of any other states
Obligations ofthe United States Govenunent
Obligations fully insured or guaranteed by the United States Government or,United States Govenullent
agency .
Obligations of any corporation of the United States Government
Prime bankers' acceptances
The State of Georgia local government investment pool (i.e., Georgia Fund I)
Repurchase agreements
Obligations of the other political subdivisions of the State of Georgia

Receivables

All trade and property tax receivables are reported net of an allowance for uncollectibles, where applicable.

Interfund Balances

On the fund financial statements, receivables and payables resulting from short-term interfund loans are
classified as "due from/to other fimds." These amounts are eliminated in the governmental and business-type
activities columns on the statement of net assets, except for any net residual amounts'due between governmental
and business-type activities, which are reclassified and presented as internal balances on this statement. These
amounts are ultimately eliminated from the total colurrm on the statement of net assets.,

A,II
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Consumable Inventories

BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

~

On the government-wide financial statements, inventories are presented at the lo~er of cost or market on a first
in, first-out basis and are expensed when used (i.e., the consumption method).

Prepaid Items

Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond June 30, 2006, are recorded as prepaid
items using the consumption method by recording an asset for the prepaid amount and reflecting the
expenditure/expense in the year in which services are consumed. At the fund reporting level, an equal amount
of fund balance is reserved as this amount is not available for general appropriation.

Capital Assets

General capital assets are those assets not specifically related to activities reported in the proprietary funds.
These assets generally result from expenditures in governmental funds. The County reports these assets in the
governmental activities column of the government-wide statement of net assets but does not report these assets
in the County fund financial statements. Capital assets utilized by proprietary funds are reported both in the
business-type activities column of the government-wide statement of net assets and in proprietary funds'
statement of net assets.

All capital assets are capitalized at cost (or estimated historical cost) and updated f<k additions and retirements
during the year. Donated capital assets are recorded at their fair market values as of the date received. The
County maintains a capitalization threshold of tlu'ee thousand dollars. The County's infrastructure consists of
roads and bridges. For roads and bridges, the County has capitalized only infrastructure constructed in fiscal
years 2003 through 2006. Improvements to capital assets are capitalized. The costs of n01111al maintenance and
repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend an asset's life are expensed. Interest
incurred during the construction of capital assets utilized by enterprise funds is capitalized.

All reported capital assets are depreciated except for land, right-of-ways and construction in progress.
Improvements are depreciated over the remaining nseful lives of the related capital assets. Useful lives for
infrastructure were estimated based on the County's historical records of necessary improvements and
replacement. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the following useful lives:

Description
Buildings
hnprovements other than buildings
Machinety and equipment
Infrastructure

Estimated Lives
15-40 years
15-40 years
5-15 years

12-25 years

At the inception of capital leases at the govermuental fimd reporting level, expenditures and an "other financing
source" of an equal amount are repOlled at the net present value of future minimum lease payments.
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Compensated Absences

BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

L

Vacation benefits are accrued as a liability as the benefits are earned if the employees' rights to receive
compensation are attributable to services already rendered and it is probable that the employer will compensate
the employees for the benefits through paid time off or some other means.

TIle total compensated absences liability is reported on the government-wide financial statements. Proprietary
funds report the total compensated absences liability in each individual fund at the fund reporting level.
Governmental funds report the compensated absences liability at the fund reporting level only "when due. "

Accrued Liabilities and Long-term Obligations

All payables, accrued liabilities and long-term obligations are reported III the government-wide financial
statements.

In general, governmental fund payables and accrued liabilities that, once incurred, are paid in a timely manner
and in full from current financial resources, are reported as obligations of these funds. However, compensated
absences that will be paid from goveITl11lental funds are reported as a liability in the fund financial statements
only to the extent that they are "due for payment" during the current year. Notes and capital leases are
recognized as a liability in the goveITl111ental fund financial statements when due.

Fund Equity I.
Fund equity at the governmental fund financial reporting level is classified as "fund balance." Fund equity for
all other reporting is classified as "net assets."

Fund Balance - Generally, fund balance represents the difference between the current assets and current
liabilities. The County reserves those portions of fund balance which are legally segregated for a specific future
use or which do not represent available, spendable resources and therefore are not available for appropriation or
expenditure. Unreserved fund balance indicates that portion of fund balance that is available for appropriation
in future periods. Designations are management's intent to set aside these resources for specific services.

Net Assets - Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities. Net assets invested in capital
assets, net of related debt, consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding
balances of any borrowing used for the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets. Net assets are
reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use either through the enabling legislation
adopted by the County or through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, or laws or regulations of
other governments. All other net assets are reported as unrestricted.

The County applies restricted resources first when an expense is incurred for purpos~)for which both restricted
and unrestricted net assets are available.
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BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Operating Revenues and Expenses

L
Operating revenues are those revenues that are generated directly from the primary activity of the proprietary
funds. For the County, these revenues are charges for services for the use of the Aquatic Center, rents collected
for the Agribusiness Center, and premiums collected for the employee insurance internal service fund.
Operating expenses are necessary costs incurred to provide the goods or service that are the primary activity of
each fund and include administrative expenses and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses
not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

Interfund Activity

Exchange transactions between funds are reported as revenues in the seller funds and as expenditures/expenses
in tile purchaser funds. Flows of cash or goods from one fund to another without a requirement for repayment
are reported as interfund transfers. Interfund transfers are reported as other financing sources/uses in
governmental funds and after the nonoperating revenues/expenses section in proprietary funds. Repayment from
funds responsible for particular expenditures/expenses to the funds that initially paid for them are not presented
on the financial statements (i.e., they arenetted).'

Transfers between govenunental and business-type activities on tile govenunent-wide statement of activities are
reported as general revenues. Transfers between funds reported in the govenunental activities column are
eliminated. Transfers between funds reported in the business type activities colunm are eliminated. Transfers
between governmental and business-type activities are eliminated from the total coluF'

Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in confonnity Witll accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States, requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the
financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

Comparative Data

Comparative total data for the prior year have been presented only for individual funds in the fund financial
statements in order to provide an understanding of the changes in the financial position and operations of these
funds. Also, certain amounts presented in the prior year data have been reclassified to be consistent with the
ClllTent year's presentation.

NOTE 2 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

Budgetary Information

The County adopts an alUlUal operating budget for the general fund, each specia~dtevenue fund and capital
projects fund. The budget resolution reflects the total of each department's appropriation in each fund.

All budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with GAAP.
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BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ---------_ ..--------

NOTE 2 - STEWARDSIDP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY (Continued)

The legal level of control (the level at which expenditures may not legally exce~ appropriations) for each
adopted arumal operating budget generally is the department level within each individual fund. The County
Manager may approve budget transfers within departments. Any change in total to a fund or departmental
appropriation within a fund requires approval of the Board of Commissioners.

During the year, the Board of Commissioners approved budget revisions.

All unexpended annual appropriations lapse at year-end.

Excess of Expenditures Over Appropriations

Expenditures exceeded appropriations for the year ended June 30, 2006 in the following departments for the
general fund:

General Fund
Current:

General government buildings
Tax assessor
Tax commissioner
Clerk of courts
Magistrate Court
Probate Court
COWlty correctional
Probation
Jail
Sheriff
Roads
Agricultural resources
Building inspections
Planning & zoning
Code enforcement
Economic development
Debt service - principal
Debt service - interest

1,743
4,798
6,130
9,920
7,879
1.006

23,244
12,803

156,786
203,186
236,986

9,076
4,344

12,759
17,869
18,085
8,497
7,123

The overexpenditures in these areas were funded by unbudgeted proceeds from capital leases and available fund
balance.
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BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 2 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY (Continued)

Expenditures exceeded appropriations in the following special revenue funds and these overexpenditures were
funded by additional revenues over amounts budgeted and/or by available fund balaItce.

StatesborolBulloch County Airport
E-9l1 fund
Hospital building fund
Jail commissary fund
Solid waste fund
Streetlight tax districts fund

Deficit Fund Balances

The following funds had a deficit fund balance at June 30, 2006:

Overexpenditures
$ 17

13,016
145

9,299
47,864

711

Drug suppression team fund
Solid waste fund

NOTE 3 - DEPOSITS

$ '8,291
61,057

June 30, 2006, the can)'ing amount of the County's deposits (checking and cfrtificates of deposit) was
$32,432,175 and the bank balance was $33,014,498. Of the bank balance, $1,866,186 was covered by federal
depository insurance and $31,147,7 I2 was collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial
institution's trust deparlment or agent in the County's name.

Discretely Presented Component Units
The carrying amount of deposits for the Development Authority of Bulloch County was $503,243 and the bank
balance was $512,774 of which $205,929 was covered by federal depository insurance and $306,845 was
collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution's trust department or agent in the
Authority's name.

NOTE 4 - PROPERTY TAXES

Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January I. Property taxes are billed on or about
October 20,h of each year and are payable within sixty days. The County bills and collects its own property
taxes and also collects taxes for the Bulloch County Board of Education, State of Georgia and cities within the
County. Collection of the County's taxes and for the other government agencies is the responsibility of the Tax
Commissioner's Office, which is accounted for in an Agency Fund. County property tax revenues at the fund
reporting level are recognized when levied to the extent that they result in current rece~vables (i.e., collectible in
60 days). For the year ended June 30, 2006, property taxes were levied on OctoblJ~ 21, 2005, and were due
January 10,2006.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 5 - INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES, AND TRANSFERS

The composition ofinterfund balances as of June 30, 2006 is as follows:

Receivable Fund

General

Juvenile Services
Aquatic Center

Total

Payable Fund

E-91 I
Solid Waste
Emergency Management Agenl:Y
SPLOST 02
Employee Insurance
Drug Suppression Team
Drug Education Fund
Tax lighting District
Keep Bulloch Beautiful
Parks and Recreation
Statesboro/Bulloch County Airport
Hospital Building
Agribusiness Center
General
Parks and Recreation

Amount

$ 103,075
61,057

25
2,534
9,239

35,574
1,568
1,055
8,656

15,613
8,549
4,451

130
1,165

29,607

$ 282,298

Interfund balances at June 30, 2006 represent reimbursable expenses and temporary loans. The County expects
to repay all interfund balances within one year. I.
Interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2006, consisted of the following:

Transfers From:

Transfers To:
General

Fund
SPLOST02

Fund

Non-Jl1ajo~

Govenunental
f:'unds

Aquatic
Center

Drug Suppression Team Fund
Parks and Recreation Fund
Solid Waste Fund
General Fund
Other Non-major Governmental Funds
Aquatic Center
Agribusiness Center
Total

$ 291,055
1,800,000
1,112,918

5,000

$ 3,208,973
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BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 5 - INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES, AND TRANSFERS (Continued)

Transfers To:
Drug Suppression Team Fund
Parks and Recreation Fund
Solid Waste Fund
General Fund
Other Non-major Governmental Funds
Aquatic Center
Agribusiness Center
Total

Transfers From:
Employee L

Agribusiness Insurance
Center Fund Total

291,055
1,800,000
1,112,918

$ 4,985 $ 29,099 151,546
5,000

95,823
3,686

$ 4,985 $ 29,099 $ 3,460,028

Transfers from the general fund are used primarily to help fund deficits in special revenue funds. Transfers
from the SPLOST 02 fund represent capital assets for the two enterprise funds paid for by the SPLOST 02 fund.
Transfers to the general fund from other funds represent reimbursements for indirect costs paid by the general
fund.

NOTE 6 - CAPITAL ASSETS

As described in Note 16, an adjustment was made to the beginning balances of. the capital assets of the
govenunental activities to correct for the error of reporting land owned by the Development Authority of
Bulloch County as a County asset. The prior period adjustment was made to the capital asset accounts as
follows: .

Balance
June 30, 2005 Balance
as originally Prior Period June 30, 2005

reported Adiustment as restated
Governmental Activities:

Land $ 3,087,211 $ (1,341,798) $ 1,745,413

Total capital asselS, I1el $ 40,657,931 $ (1,341,798) $ 39,316,133
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NOTE 6 - CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2006, after adjusting for the prior period described above, was

as follows: ~

Balance Balance
07/01/05 Additions Deductions 06/30106

Governmental Activities:

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 1,745,413 $ 1,745,413
Construction in progress 1,591,580 $ 2,072,980 $ 1,591,579 2,072,981

Total capital assets not being depreciated 3,336,993 2,072,980 1,591,579 3,818,394

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings 22,262,777 1,620,408 20,630 23,862,555
Improvements other than buildings 6,926,919 209,725 7,136,644
Machinery and equipment 14,906,872 2,335,718 632,382 16,610,208
Infrastructure 9,637,735 3,190,741 12,828,476

Total capital assets being depreciated 53,734,303 7,356,592 653,012' 60,437,883

Total capital assets 57,071,296 9,429,572 2,244,591 64,256,277

Accumulated depreciation:
Buildings 6,131,052 599,375 11,670 6,718,757
Improvements other than buildings 1,812,208 252,120

592,08;1.
2,064,328

Machinery and equipment 8,847,962 1,544,114 9,799,994
Infrastructure 963,941 748,428 1,712,369

Total accumulated depreciation 17,755,163 3,144,037 603,752 20,295,448

Govermnental activities capital assets, net $ 39,316,133 $ 6,285,535 $ 1,640,839 $ 43,960,829

Govenunental activities depreciation expense:

General govenunent

Judicial

Public safety

Roads

Sanitation

Health and welfare

Libraries and recreation

Airport

Housing and development

Total govenunental activities depreciation expense
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$ 236,909

204,123

757,283

1,452,075

87,018

112,634

190,047

87,163

16,785

$ 3,144,037



BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 6 - CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30,2006 for the County's enterprise funds was as follows:

t
Balance Balance
07/01/05 Additions Deductions 06/30/05

Business-type activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land $ 329,177 $ 329,177

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings 6,643,973 6,643,973
Improvements oUler than buildings 1,142,200 37,503 1,179,703
Machinery and equipment 363,019 67,553 430,572

Total capital assets being depreciated 8,149,192 105,056 8,254,248

Total capital assets 8,478,369 105,056 8,583,425

Accumulated depreciation:
Buildings 268,252 197,881 466,133
Machinery and equipment 37,696 41,049 78,745
Improvements other than buildings 81,591 80,629 162,220

Total accumulated depreciation 387,539 319,559. 707,098
Business-type activities captial

assets, nel $ 8,090,830 $ (214,503)

I.
$ 7,876,327

NOTE 7 - CAPITAL LEASES

The County has entered into lease agreements as lessee for financing the acquisition and construction of various
equipment and buildings costing $16,829,910. As of June 30, 2006 approximately $9,418,000 of the capital
lease proceeds were not spent. These lease agreements qualify as capital leases for accounting purposes and,
therefore, have been recorded at the present value of the future minimum lease payments as of the date of their
inception.

~dl
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BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 7 - CAPITAL LEASES (Continued)

The following is a schedule of future minimum lease paymcnts under these capital leases, and the present value
of the net minimum lease payments at June 30, 2006: ~

Year ending June 30
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012-2016
2017-2021

Total minimum lease payments
Less amount representing interest

Present value of future minimum lease payments

NOTE 8-NOTE PAYABLE

$ 1,663,501
1,807,711
2,161,208
1,852,464
1,742,516
4,907,490
4,580,005

18,714,895
4,351,293

$ 14,363,602

Notes payable at June 30, 2006 consisted of a note payable to the Georgia Environmental Facilities Authority
(GEFA) for expenditures incurred related to the construction ofa water tank and the extension of water and
sewer lines to the Gateway Industrial Park. The loan requires quarterly payments of$21,042, including interest
at 5.12 perccnt through January 1, 2016. The County has entered into an agreement t.ith the City of Statesboro
by which the City has agreed to reimburse the County for each required payment on this GEFA loan. The loan
had an outstanding balance of$653,870 at June 30, 2006.

As of June 30, 2006, annual debt service requirements to maturity are as follows:

Year ending
June 30

2007
2008
2009
2010
2011

2012-2016

Principal
$ 53,140

55,914
58,832
61,903
65,133

358,948

$ 653,870
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Interest
$ 32,469

29,695
26,777
23,706
20,476
47,696

$ 180,819

Total
$ 85,609

85,609
85,609
85,609
85,609

406,644

$ 834,689



BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 9 - CHANGES IN LONG-TERl\-I DEBT

Compensated absences
payable

Capital leases payable
Notes payable

Balance
July I,
2005

$ 354,017
4,271,798

691,988

$ 5,317,803

Additions

$ 18,152
10,958,505

$10,976,657

Reductions

5> 866,701
38,118

$ 904,819

Balance
June 30,
2006~

$ 372,169
14,363,602

653,870

$15,389,641

Amounts
Due In

One Year

$ 74,434
818,772
53,140

$ 946,346

The compensated absences liability will be paid from the fund from which the employees' salaries are paid
which is primarily the General Fund and the Parks and Recreation special revenue fund. The capital lease
obligations will be paid from the General Fund and the SPLOST 02, SPLOST 07, and LOST capital projects
funds. Notes payable will be paid from the General Fund.

NOTE 10 - EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS

Defined Contribution Plan

Effective November ], ] 994, the County adopted the Bulloch County Retirement Plan. The plan is
administered by CB]Z Insurance and Benefits Services, and covers all employees over the age of 2] who have
completed One year of service. Employees cannot contribute to the plan. Contributions to the plan are at the
discretion of the Board of Commissioners. The Board of Commissioners is assignep the authority to establish
and amend any provisions of the plan. During the year ended June 30, 2006, the CJunty conttibuted $6]6,849
or 6.5% of eligible salaries to the plan.

Probate Judges' Retirement Fund of Georgia

The Probate Judge is covered under a pension plan which requires that certain sums from marriage licenses be
remitted to the state sponsored pension plan.

Clerk of Superior Court Retirement Fund

The Clerk of Superior Court is covered under a pension plan which requires that certain sums from fees and
fines or bond forfeitures be remitted to the state sponsored pension plan.

Sheriff's Retirement Fund/Peace Oftlcers' Atmuity and Benefit Fund

The Sheriff and sheriff deputies are covered under separate pension plans which require that certain sums from
fines or bond fotfeitures be remitted by the Magistrate Court and Clerk of Supetior Court to the state sponsored
pension plans.

Md!
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BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 10 - EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)

Bulloch County Board of Health (component unit)

The employees of the Bulloch County Board of Health participate in the Georgia State Employees Retirement
System. The plan is administered by the State of Georgia, and accumulated benefits and plan assets are not
determined or allocated to the individual participating governmental entities. The retirement contributions fix
the year ended June 30, 2006 were $95,807. Contributions are fully vested to employees after 10 years of
continuous service.

NOTE 11- EMPLOYEE INSURANCE FUND

As of May I, 1993, the County established an employee insurance fund (an internal service fund) to cover all
employee health claims. The County makes payments to this fund on a monthly basis based on estimated
premiums provided by the third party administrator to fund this program. Amounts are also withheld from
employees by payroll deduction for dependent coverage and paid to the employee insurance fund. A third party
administrator pays all claims from funds held in the employee insurance fund's barik account. The COllTIty has
a co-insuror for claims from one individual within one year exceeding $60,000 and has a maximum armual
liability policy of$2,806,652.

The claims liability of $180,146 reported at June 30, 2006 represents known claims incurred on or prior to June
30, 2006 and an estimate for claims that have been incurred but not repOlted. C1anges in the fund's claims
liability for the last two fiscal years are as follows: .

Year Ended
Junc30

2005
2006

Claims Liability,
Beginning of

Year
$ 72,882

220,000

Current Year
Claims and
Changes in
Estimates

$ 1,733,314
1,376,907

Claims
Payments

$ 1,586,196
1,416,761

Claims Liability,
End dfYear

$ 220,000
180,146

NOTE 12 - RISK MANAGEMENT

The County is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of assets;
etTOrs and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The County has joined together with other
counties in the state as part of the Association of County Commissioners of Georgia (ACCG) Interlocal Risk
Management Agency Property and Liability Insurance Fund and the Association or County Commissioners of
Georgia (ACCG) Group Self-Insurance Workers Compensation Fund, a public .entity risk pool cun'ently
operating as a conunon risk management insurance program for member local govenuIjents.

~"{
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BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 12 - RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

•As part of these risk pools, the County is obligated to pay all contributions and assessments as prescribed by the
pools, to cooperate with the pool's agents and attorneys, to follow loss reduction procedures established by the
funds, and to report as promptly as possible, and in accordance with any coverage descriptions issued, all
incidents which could result in the funds being required to pay any claim of loss. The County is also to allow
the pool's agents and attorneys to represent the County in investigation, settlement discussions and all levels of
litigation arising out of any claim made against the County within the scope of loss protection furnished by the
funds.

The funds are to defend and protect the members of the funds against liability or loss as prescribed in the
member government contract and in accordance with the worker's compensation law of Georgia. The funds are
to pay all cost taxed against members in any legal proceeding defended by the members, all interest accruing
after entry ofjudgment, and all expenses incurred for investigation, negotiation or defense.

Settled claims in the past three years have not exceeded the coverages.

NOTE 13 - CONTINGENCIES

The County is a defendant in various lawsuits. Although the outcome of these lawsuits is not presently
determinable, in the opinion of the County attorney, the resolution of these matters probably will not have a
material adverse effect on the financial condition of the County.

NOTE 14 - JOINT VENTURE

Under Georgia law, the County, in conjunction with other cities and counties in the ten county Southeast
Georgia area, is a member of the Coastal Georgia Regional Development Center (RDC) and is required to pay
annual dues thereto. During its year ended June 30, 2006, the County paid $28,270 in such dues. Membership
in an RDC is required by the Official Code of Georgia Annotated (OCGA) Section 50-8-34 which provides for
the organizational structure of the RDC in Georgia. The RDC Board membership includes the chief elected
official of each county and municipality of the area. OCGA 50-8-39.1 provides that the member governments
are liable for any debts or obligations of an RDC. Separate financial statements may be obtained from:

Coastal Georgia Regional Development Center
Post Office Box 1917
Brunswick, Georgia 31521

··50-



BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 15 - HOTELIMOTEL LODGING TAX

L
The county has levied a five percent lodging tax. A summary of the transactions for the year ended June 30,
2006 follows:

Percentage of

tax receipts

Lodging tax receipts

Disbursements to the:

Statesboro Convention and Visitors Bureau
for promotion oftourism

Statesboro Arts Council for performing
arts center

County for administrative costs

Total

$ 13,923

(12,736)

(491)

(696)

$

91.5%

3.5%

5.0%

I.

All expenditures were for promotion of tourism as required by O.C.G.A. 48-13-41.
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BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 16 - PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS

~

The following period adjustments have been made in the financial statements, which are reported as an
adjustment to beginning fund balance or net assets:

Adjustments to the fund balances of governmental funds in the fund
financial statements:

Parks and Recreation Fund
Overstatement of accrued payroll $ 22,586

Adjustments to net assets of governmental activities
in the government-wide fmancial statements:

Decrease the capital assets of governmental activities
to correct error in the caiTying value of assets at
the end of the prior year

Net decrease in net assets of governmental activities

Adjustments to net assets of enterprise funds in the fund
finaucial statements:

(1,341,798)
..

$ (1,319,212)

Aquatic Center
Understatement of accrued payroll

Net decrease in net assets of enterprise funds and
of business-type activities in the government-wide
financial statements
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BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUN OS
JUNE 30. 2006

StntcsboroJ Drug Emergency
Bulloch Designated Drug Suppression Milnagement HotcU Hospital
County Projects Education Team £·911 Agency Grccnspace MOlel Tax Building

Airport Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund
ASSETS

Cash S 152,567 S 80,337 S 67,968 S 27,283 S 121,705 S 19,833 S 20,093 S 1,093 S 618.072
Accounts receivable 19,782 3,152 80,504
Inventories 56,184
Due from other funds

TOTAL ASSETS S 228.533 S 83,489 S 67.968 S 27,283 S 203,209 S 19,833 S 20.093 S 1,093 S 618.072

LIABILITIES AND fUND BALANCE
Liabilities:
Accounts payable S 47,854 S 8,492
Accrued payroll
Due to olher funds 8,549 S 1,568 S 35,574 103,075 S 25 S 4,451
Olher

Total liabilities 56,403 1,568 35,574 111,567 25 4,451
Fund balance - Unreserved,
undesignated 172.130 S 83.489 66,400 {11.291l 91,642 19.808 S 20,093 S \.093 613,621

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
fUND BALANCE S 228.533 S 83,489 S 67,968 S 27.283 S 203.209 S 19.833 S 20,093 S 1.093 S 618.01'"

~-
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BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
JUNE 30. 2006

Tolal
K",p Slrccllighl Nonmajor

Jail Juvenile Bulloch Parks and Sheriffs Sheriff's Solid Tax Special
Jail Add·On Commissary Services Beautiful Recreation Confiscated Fingcrprin! Wasle Districts Revenue

Fcc Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Assets Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds
ASSETS

ClIsh $ 42,711 $ 38,595 $ 4,054 $ 83,411 $ 433,062 $ 12,782 $ 16,623 $ 39,984 $ 1,781,173
Accounts receivable 103,438
Inventories 56,184
Due from other funds 1,165 1,165

TOTAL ASSETS $ 42.711 $ 38.595 $ 5.219 $ 83,411 $ 433,062 S 12,182 $ 16,623 $ 39,984 $ 1,941.960

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities:

AccounlS payable $ 1,000 $ 14,388 $ 1,842 $ 73,576
Accrued payroll 88,099 88,099
Due to other funds 8,656 45,220 S 6\,057 S 1.055 269,230
Other 11,457 11,457

Total liabilities 9,656 159,164 1,842 61,057 442,362
Fund balance· Unreserved,

undesignated $ 42,711 S 38,595 S 5.219 73,755 273,898 $ 12.7H2 14,781 (61,057) 38.929 1.499.598

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCE $ 42.711 $ 38,595 $ 5,219 $ 83,411 $ 433.062 $ [2,782 $ 16.623 $ 39,984 S 1,941,960
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BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
CO/l.IBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND B:\LANCES

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

Slatesboro! Dmg Emergency
Bulloch CD8G Designaled Dmg Suppression Management Holell Hospilal
County GlOmI Projccts Educ:Jlion Team E-911 Agcncy Grecnspllce MOlel T:IX Building

Airport Fund Fund Fund Fund Flmd Fund Fund F""d Fund Flmd
REVENUES

Taxes S 13,923
Charges for services S 427.316 S 864,136
Fees, fines :Jnd forfeilures S 38,457 S 9,214
Intergovernmental S 33,685 27,236
Interest 2,766 310 164 UH5 112 S 81 S 13,097
Other 85,094 S 42,881 37.000

Tolal n::venucs 515,176 33,685 42,881 38,767 9,378 865.181 27.348 81 13.923 50.097

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Airport 502,839
Public safelY 4,674 61,618 344,287 7]9.254 32,185
Roads 33,685
Recreation
Sanilation
Housing and de\'eloprncnt 14,043 '45

Capital outlay:
Public safely 15,747 40,955
Recreation

Debt senice:
Principal
Interesl

TOlal expenditures 502,8]9 33.685 20.42 I 61.618 385,241 739,254 32,185 14,043 145

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF
REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES 12.337 22.'160 (22.851) (375,864} 115.927 (4,837) (120) 49,952

On~ER FINANCING SOURCES
Proceeds from capilalleases
Sale ofcapital asscls
Tr.msfers in 29\.055 5,000
Transfers oul (24,646) (1,103) (7,016) (U.148) (2.107)

~otal otber fill3ncing sources (uses) (24,646) (1.10]) 284.Q]C}. (13.148) 2,893
~-

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES (12,309) 22.460 (23,954) (91,825) 112,779 (1.94-11 (120) 49,952

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF
YEAR 184,439 61,029 90,354 83,534 . (2U37) 21.752 20.012 1,213 563,669

PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR S 172.130 S S 83,489 S 66.400 S (8.291) S 91.642 S 19.808 S 20,093 S 1.093 S 613,621
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BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
COMBINING STr\TEMENTOF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

Totnl
f\.eep Streetlight Nonmajor

Jnil Juvenile Bulloch Parks and Sheriffs Sheriffs Solid To> Special
Jail Add-On Commissary Services Beautiful Recreation Confiscated Fingerprint Waste Districts Revenue

Fee Fund Fund Fund Food Fund Assets Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds
REVENUES

T3..'(cs S 30,547 S 44,470
Charges for services S 47,656 SI,382,846 S 39.288 S 289,787 3,051,029
Fees, fines and forfeitures S 158,216 S 5,219 S 20,635 231,741
Interco \'emmenl31 S 94.005 122,000 276,926
Inlc=sl '0' 283 9,483 145 240 27.830

OIlier 13.171 62.843 130,410 371.)99
Total revenues 158,320 47,656 5,219 107,459 1.455.172 20,635 39,433 542.197 30,787 4,003,395

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Airport 502,839
Public safety 147,415 8,348 6,067 27,291 1,371,139
Roads 30.379 64,064
Recreation 3,181.726 3,181,716
Sanitation 95,626 1,599,916 1,695,542
Housing and development 14,188

C3pital outlay:
Public safety 35,951 19,334 111,987
RecfCillion 36,897 36,897

Debl service:
Principal 17,"68 17.468
Interest 1.922 1,9""

Total expenditures 147,4[5 44.299 95.626 3,238.013 25,401 27.291 1.599.916 30,379 6.997,772

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF
REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES 10.905 3.357 5,219 11.833 (1.782,8411 (4,766) 12,142 (1.057.719) 408 (2.99,U77)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds from capital leases 107.920 107.920
S31e of c:lpit31 assets 9,071 9,071

Tr.msfers in 1,800,000 1,112,918 3.208.973

Transfers out (2.536) ( 1.725\ [52.281)

t~tal other financing sources (uses) (2.536) 11.725) 1.916,991 Ll12.918 -0- 3.273,683

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 8,369 3,357 5,219 10,108 134.150 (4.766) 12.142 55.199 '08 279,306

FUND BALANCES, BEGINN[NG OF
YEAR 34,342 35,238 63,647 117,162 17,5018 2,639 (I [6,256) 38,521 1,197,706

PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT 22.586 22.586

FUND BALANCES. END OF YEAR S 42.711 S 38.595 S 5.219 S 73,755 S 273.898 S 12.782 S 14.781 S (61.057) S 38,929 SI.499,598
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BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
STATESBORO/BULLOCH COUNTYAIRPORT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

0

Variance
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)

REVENUES
Charges for services $ 289,900 $ 428,404 $ 427,316 $ (1,088)
Interest 2,000 2,600 2,766 166
Other 79,000 85,000 85,094 94

Total revenues 370,900 516,004 515,176 (828)

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Airport 361,065 502,822 502,839 ( 17)

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES 9,835 13,182 12,337 (845)

OTHER FINANCING USES
Transfers out (24,646) (24,646) (24,646)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES (14,811) (11,464) ~~2,309) (845)

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR 184,439 184,439 184,439

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR $ 169,628 $ 172,975 $ 172,130 $ (845)
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BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
CDBG GRANT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

REVENUES
Intergovernmental

EXPENDITURES
Capital:

Roads

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR

-S8-

Original and

Final Budget

$ SOO,OOO

SOO,OOO

Actual

$ 33,68S

33,68S

I.

Variance
Positive

(Negative)

$ (466,3IS)

466,31S



BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
DESIGNATED PROJECTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

0

Variance

Original and Positive

Final Budget Actual (Negative)

REVENUES

Telephone commissions $ 39,700 $ 42,881 $ 3,181

Total revenues 39,700 42,881 3,181

EXPENDITURES

Current:

Public safely 8,189 4,674 3,515

Capital outlay:

Public safely 15,830 15,747 83

Total expenditures 24,019 20,421 3,598

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 15,681 22,460 6,779

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR $ 61,029 61,029

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR $ 76,710 $ 83,489 j~ 6,779
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BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
DRUG EDUCAnON SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

I.

Variance
Original Final Positive

Budget Budget Actual (Negative)

REVENUES

Fees, fines and forfeitures $ 48,000 $ 29,157 $ 38,457 $ 9,300

Interest 200 300 310 10

Total revenues 48,200 29,457 38,767 9,310

EXPENDITURES

Current:
Public safety 94,209 64,806 61,618 3,188

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER

(UNDER) EXPENDITURES (46,009) (35,349) (22,851 ) 12,498

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

Transfers out (1,103) (1,103) (1,103)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES (47,112) (36,452) (23,954) 12,498

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR 90,354 90,354 ~O,354

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR $ 43,242 $ 53,902 $ 66,400 $ 12,498
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BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
DRUG SUPPRESSION TEAM SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

L

Variance
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)

REVENUES
Fees, fines and forfeitures $ 22,016 $ 9,213 $ 9,214 $ I
Intergovernmental 8,195 (8,195)

Interest 164 164

Total revenues 22,016 17,408 9,378 (8,030)

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Public safety 369,160 345,731 344,287 1,444

Capital outlay:
Public safely 43,000 41,151 40,955 196

Total expenditures 412,160 386,882 385,242 1,640

DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES
UNDER EXPENDITURES (390,144) (369,474) (375,864) (6,390)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

2~1.055Transfers in 291,055 291,055
Transfers out (7,016) (7,016) (7,016)

Total other financing sources (uses) 284,039 284,039 284,039

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES (106,105) (85,435) (91,825) (6,390)

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR 83,534 83,534 83,'534

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR $ (22,571 ) $ (1,901 ) $ (8,291 ) $ (6,390)
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BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
E-9l1 SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

L

Variance

Original Final Positive

Budget Budget Actual (Negative)

REVENUES

Charges for services $ 829,942 $ 753,162 $ 864,136 $ 110,974
Interest 900 1,045 145

Total revenues 829,942 754,062 865,181 111,119

EXPENDITURES

Current:

Public safety 800,613 726,238 739,254 (13,016)

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER

(UNDER) EXPENDITURES 29,329 27,824 125,927 98,103

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

Transfers out (13,148) (13,148) (13,148)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 16,181 14,676 11\2,779 98,103

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR (21,137) (21,137) (21,137)

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR $ (4,956) $ (6,461 ) $ 91,642 $98,103

,
~dl

-62-



BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

~

Variance

Original Final Positive

Budget Budget Actual (Negative)

REVENUES

Intergovernmental $ 178,668 $ 27,236 $ 27,236 $

Interest 112 112

Total revenues 178,668 27,348 27,348

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Public Safety 181,561 34,545 32,185 2,360

DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES

UNDER EXPENDITURES (2,893) (7,197) (4,837) 2,360

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in 5,000 5,000 5,000

Transfers out (2,107) (2, I07) (2,107)

Total other financing sources (uses) 2,893 2,893 ~

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES (4,304) (1,944) 2,360

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR 21,752 21,752 21,752

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR $ 21,752 $ 17,448 $ 19;808 $2,360
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BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
GREENSPACE SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

~

Variance
Original/Final Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

REVENUES

Interest $ 50 $ 81 $ 31

EXPENDITURES

Current:

Recreation

EXCESS OR REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 50 81 31

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR 20,012 20,012

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR $ 20,062 $ 20,093 $ 31

I.
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BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
HOTEUMOTEL TAX SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

REVENUES

Taxes

~

Variance
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)

$ 12,000 $ 13,922 $ 13,923 $

EXPENDITURES

Current:

Housing and development - Tourism

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER

(UNDER) EXPENDITURES

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR,

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR $
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12,816

(816)

1,213

397 $

14,379

(457)

1,213

756

14,043

( 120)

.1,213

$ 1,093

I.

336

337

337



BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA

HOSPITAL BUILDING SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

Original and
Final Budget Actual

Variance
Positive

(Negative)
REVENUES

Interest
Other

Total revenues

$ 10,000

10,000

$ 13,097

37,000

50,097

$ 3,097

37,000

40,097

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Community development - Hospital renovations

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR
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10,000

$ 563,669

573,669

145

49,952

563,669

$ 613,621 $

I.

(145)

39,952

39,952



BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
JAIL ADD-ON FEE SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

~

Variance
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)

REVENUES
Fees, fines and forfeitures $ 150,000 $ 152,900 $ 158,216 $ 5,316

Interest 100 104 4
Total revenues 150,000 153,000 158,320 5,320

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Public Safety - Jail 152,536 147,500 147,415 85

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES (2,536) 5,500 10,905 5,405

OTHER FINANCING USES
Transfers out (2,536) (2,536)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES (2,536) 2,964
I.

8,369 5,405

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR 34,342 34,342 34,342

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR $ 31,806 $ 37,306 $ 42,711 $ 5,405
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BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
JAIL COMMISSARY SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

0

Variance

Original and Positive
Final Budget Actual (Negative)

REVENUES

Charges for services $ 35,000 $ 47,656 $ 12,656

EXPENDITURES

Current:

Public safety 3,000 8,348 (5,348)

Capital outlay:

Public safety 32,000 35,951 (3,95 I)

Total expenditures 35,000 44,299 (9,299)

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 3,357 3,357

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR 35,238 35,238

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR $ 35,238 $ 38,595 $ 3,357

I.
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BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
JUVENILE SERVICES SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

REVENUES
Fees, fines and forfeitures

~

Variance
Original and Positive
Final Budget Actual (Negative)

$ 3,500 $ 5,219 $ 1,719

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Judicial

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR
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3,500

5,219

$ 5,219

I.

3,500

5,219

$ 5,219
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BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
PARKS AND RECREATION SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

L

Variance
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)

REVENUES
Charges for services $ 1,293,594 $ 1,380,255 $ 1,382,846 $ 2,591
Interest 15,000 22,000 9,483 (12,517)

Other 79,700 59,705 62,843 3,138
Total revenues 1,388,294 1,461,960 1,455,172 (6,788)

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Recreation 3,188,294 3,216,097 3,181,726 34,371

Capital Outlay:
Recreation 8,203 39,897 (28,694)

Debt Service:
Principal 18,538 17,468 1,070

Interest 1,922 1,922

Total expenditures 3,188,294 3,244,760 3,238,013 6,747

DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES UNDER
(1,78j,1l41)EXPENDITURES (1,800,000) (1,782,800) (41 )

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Proceeds from capital leases 107,920 107,920

Sale ofcapital assets 9,071 9,071

Transfers in 1,800,000 1,800,000 1,800,0.00
Total other financing sources 1,800,000 1,800,000 1,916,991 116,991

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 17,200 134,150 116,950

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR 117,162 117,162 117,162

PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT 22,586 22,586

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR $ 117,162 $ 134,362 $ 273,898 $ 139,536
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BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
SHERIFF'S CONFISCATED ASSETS SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

REVENUES

Fees, fines and forfeitures

•
Variance

Original and Positive

Final Budget Actual (Negative)

$ 35,000 $ 20,635 $ (14,365)

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Public safety
Capital outlay:

Public safety
Total expenditures

DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES UNDER EXPENDITURES

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR
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3,000

32,000
35,000

17,548

$ 17,548

6,067

19,334
25,401

(4,766)

17,548

$ 12,782

I.

(3,067)

12,666
9,599

(4,766)

$ (4,766)



BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
SHERIFF'S FfNGERPRfNT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

~

Variance

Original and Positive

Final Budget Actual (Negative)
REVENUES

Charges for services 40,000 $ 39,288 $ (712)

Interest 145 145

Total revenues 40,000 39,433 (567)

EXPENDITURES

Current:

Public Safety 28,000 27,291 709

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 12,000 12,142 142

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNfNG OF YEAR 2,639 2,639

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR 14,639 $ 14,781 $ 142

I.

,
Adl
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BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
SOLID WASTE SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

0

Variance
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)

REVENUES
Charges for services $ 200,000 $ 289,788 $ 289,787 $ (I)

Intergovernmental 122,000 122,000 122,000
Other 115,000 130,410 130,410

Total revenues 437,000 542,198 542,197 (I)

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Sanitation 1,455,000 1,552,052 1,599,916 (47,864)

DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES UNDER

EXPENDITURES (1,018,000) (1,009,854) (1,057,719) (47,865)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers in 1,018,000 1,112,920 1,112,918 (2)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 103,066 55, 1:9 (47,867)

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR (116,256) (116,256) ( 116,256)

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR $ (116,256) $ (13,190) $ (61,057) $ (47,867)
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BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
STREETLIGHT TAX DISTRICTS SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

I.

Variance

Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)

REVENUES

Taxes $ 27,062 $ 29,668 $ 30,547 $ 879

Interest 240 240

Total revenues 27,062 29,668 30,787 1,119

EXPENDITURES

Current:

Roads - Street lighting 27,062 29,668 30,379 (711 )

Total expenditures 27,062 29,668 30,379 (711 )

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 408 408

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR 38,521 38,521 38,521

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR $ 38,521 $ 38,521 $ 38,929 $ 408

I.
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BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

AGENCY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2006

Emergency
Tax Fire Probate Clerk of MDgislratc Medical

Commissioner Dislrict Court Courts Court Sheriff Service Probation loud
ASSETS

Cash $ 44,291 $ 112,752 $ 7,961 $ 526,819 $ 2,988 $ 115,535 $ $ 102,871 $ 913,217

LIABILITIES
Due to mher entities nnd individuals $ 44,291 $ 112,752 $ 7,961 $ 526,819 $ 2,988 $ 115,535 $ $ 102,871 $ 913,217
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BULLOCIl COUNTY, GEORGIA
SCIlEDULE OF PROJECTS PAID WITH SPECIAL

PURPOSE LOCAL OPTION SALES TAX PROCEEDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2006

SPLOST 02 Fund
Estimated

Original Current Expenditures L Percentage
Estimated Estimated Prior Current of

Project Cost Cost Years Yenr Total Completion
Rood improvements ~ County 5,000,000 5,000,000 1,259,758 1,259,758 25%
Solid wilSte ~ Air rights - Joint 1,510,000 1,510,000 1,154,652 1,154,652 76%
Solid waste - Post closure - Joint 610,000 610,000 0%
Communications system - JoiOl 1,500,000 1,500,000 775,029 287,730 1,062,759 71%
Solid ,vaste - recycling - County 640,000 640,000 0·''.Public safety - Sheriff 1,000,000 990,000 251,811 170,994 422,805 43%
Public safety - Rural Fire 900,000 900,000 490,234 J 1,301 501,535 56%
Public safely - EMS 600,000 600,000 160,816 138,472 299,288 50%
Public safety - Animal contol 10,000 6,477 1,777 8,254 83%
Airport - County 750,000 750,000 330,218 93,079 423,297 56%
Agribusiness Center - County 6,100,000 6,100,000 280,024 3,836 283,860 5%
Parks nnd recreation· County 7,000,000 7,000,000 4,499,549 286,472 4,786,021 68%
Industrial park - County 5.500.000 5,500,000 2,923,917 231,985 3,155,912 57%
Water/sewcr systcm - County 100,000 100,000 29,780 29,780 30%
Community facilitics - County 3,143,000 3,143,000 473,826 861,727 1,335,553 42%
Am center - Stmesboro 1,360,000 1,446.932 1,446,932 1,446,932 100"10
Municipal buildingIPolice Stmion-
SUltesboro 2,140,000 2,140,000 367,9IJ 1,218.667 1,596,580 75%

Public safely vehicles - Statesboro 500,000 500,000 63,674 100,000 163,674 33%
Water/sewer system - Statesboro 5,000,000 5,000,000 950,000 2\,023 971,023 19%
City streets, etc. - StDtesboro 5,000,000 5,000,000 389,662 470,805 860,467 17%
Municipal building - Brooklet 350,000 420,000 242,490 105,645 348,135 83%
Cultural facility - Brooklet 75,000 5,000 0%
Water system - Brooklet 230,000 230,000 32,787 11,943 44,730 19%
City streets, etc. - Brooklet 205,000 205,000 25,212 66,257 I. 91,469 45%
Solid \vaste - Portal 50,000 50,000 15,235 2,716 17,951 36%
Cuttuml facility. Portal 50,000 50.000 17.635 17,635 35%
Water system - Portal 200,000 200,000 9,085 9,795 18,880 9%
City streets, etc ~ Portal 160,000 160,000 11,973 104,694 116,667 73%
Water system - Register 27,000 27,000 545 545 2%
Public safely Ihcility - Register 15,000 35,000 23,330 23,330 67%
Recreational areas - Rcgister 15,000 15,000 0%
Cultuml facility - Register 45,000 25,000 4,600 4,600 18%
City streets, etc. - Register 25.000 25.000 0%

49,800,000 49,886,932 13,794,289 6,651,803 20,446.092 41%
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON

AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Commissioners
Bulloch County, Georgia

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities," the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund infon11ation of Bulloch County, Georgia, as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2006, which collectively comprise Bulloch County's basic financial statements and
have issued our report thereon dated December 22, 2006, We did not audit the financial
statements of the Bulloch County Board of Health and the Development AUlhority of Bulloch
County, Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose' report has been
furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the Bulloch
County Board of Health and the Development Authority of Bulloch County, is based on the
reports of the other auditors, We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States,

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered Bulloch County, Georgia's internal control
over financial reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of
expressing our opinions on the financial statements and not to provide an opinion on the internal
control over financial reporting, However, we noted certain matters involving the internal
control over financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be reportable conditions.
Reportable conditions involve matters coming to our attention relating to significant deficiencies
in the design or operation of the internal control over financial reporting that, in our judgment,
could adversely affect Bulloch County, Georgia's ability to initiate, record, pro,cess, and report
financial data consistent with the assertions of management in the findrl\:ial statements.
Reportable conditions are as follows:
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1. During our audit we noted that the Clerk of Courts' office does not make deposits in a timely
manner, causing the understatement of cash and receipts for the Clerk of Cowts agency fund
and the understatement of revenues for the general fund. Checks received from the Sheriffs
department and the probation department agency funds were held for several months before
being deposited. Money should be deposited daily, or locked in a safe when not deposited.
If it is not feasible to deposit money daily, deposits should be made at least weekly.

County Response: During the fiscal year 2007 budget preparation ~eriod, the County
Manager as representative of the Board of Commissioners, consulted with the Clerk of
Courts to develop a corrective action plan. The County Manager recommended developing a
position with the department for the 2007 fiscal year for a qualified financial administrator to
provide central oversight for accounting and treasury management. The Clerk of Courts
reported instead that she would reassign duties within the office to satisfy the corrective
action regarding this issue. During the remainder of fiscal year 2007 and during budget
planning for fiscal year 2008, the Board of Commissioners will reiterate this
recommendation. The Clerk of Courts is a constitutional officer and maintains the discretion
to accept, reject or modify any such recommendation.

2. Inadequate bank reconciliations are prepared for the bank accounts of the Clerk of Courts.
The reconciliations often contain improper reconciling items, consisting· mostly of
disbursements made in tlle following month. We recommend that proper bank
reconciliations be prepared monthly, in a form that reconciles the balance on the bank
statement to the checkbook balance at each month end.

County Response: Same as for item 1 above.

3. During our audit we noted that deposits are often not made in a timely mjUlner in the Probate
Court's office. Money should be deposited at least weekly into the appropriate accounts,
regardless of the amount on hand to be deposited.

County Response: The Probate Court will be sent an advisory memorandum on this issue.
The Probate Court Judge is a constitutional officer and maintains the discretion to accept,
reject or modify any such reconunendation.

4. During our audit we encountered complications in the reconciliation of accounts receivable
repOlts to actual deposits for the EMS department, consisting mostly of timing differences in
the period in which the cash was deposited into the bank and the time during which the
receipts were posted in the accounts receivable software. These differences are the results of
various circumstances, including problems with Medicaid and the untimely posting of
receipts to accounts due to a shortage in staff. The inability to reconcile accounts receivable
reports to the bank deposits weakens intemal control, even if the differences are a result of
circumstances beyond the control of EMS staff We recommend that a formal reconciliation
be prepared each month for accounts receivable and deposits and that any differences be fully
and clearly documented on that reconciliation.

County Response: The Board of Commissioners has already authorized wI.internal audit by a
qualified accounting finn to provide reCOllU11endations and procedures to the EMS staff.
Results are pending, but are likely to satisfy this issue.
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5. During our audit we noted that the County did not amend the budget for significant capital
leasc obligations incurred dUling the year. A budget amendment should be made for any
capital leases incurred not previously budgcted for. The amendment should recognize the
proceeds from the capital lease and the related expenditures.

County Response: The County Manager and Financial Administration slaff was unaware of
the preference to recognize the lease proceeds as an other financing SO\ll'ce in the final budget
amendment. With the likelihood of similar nlture arrangements, this note will be used as a
reminder to recognizc the lease purchase proceeds in future budget final amendments.

6. As noted in Note 2 to the financial statements, expenditures exceeded appropriations at the
legal level of control for certain general lund departments and certain special revenue funds.
Budget amendments should be made and approved by the Board of Commissioners for any
overexpenditures of the County budget.

County Response: The County attempted to correct ihis problem by adopting a tentative
final budget amendment before June 30, 2006 and an official final budget amendment in
September, 2006. The County financial staff has instituted centralized purchasing with a
computerized encumbrance system and is attempting to move toward a fund. accounting
stmcture with its software to minimize or eliminate reconciliation, absent of error. If
successful, along with the aforementioned amendment procedure, overexpenditures of
appropriations should be minimized or eliminated.

A material weakness is a reportabl~ condition in which the design or operation of one or more of
the intemal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk U1at
misstatements caused by error or fraud in amounts that would be materia) in relation to the
financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within Ii timely period by
employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. Our consideration of the
intemal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in the intemal
control that might be reportable conditions and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all
reportable conditions that are also considered to be material wealrnesses. However, of the
reportable conditions described above, we consider items I and 2 to bc material, weaknesses.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Bulloch County, Georgia's financial
statements are free of matcrial misstatement, we perfonned tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which
could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our
audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government
Auditing Standards.
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This report is intended solely for the information and use of the board of commissioners,
management, the State of Georgia, ,md federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and
is not intended to be and should not be ll~ed b:/ anyone other than these specified parties.

December 22, 2006

I.
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